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Key Figures for Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG

31 Dec 20714 31 Dec 2013 Change
€ milhon € mudlion € mulhon %
Income Statement
Net interest iIncome and current income 108 2 136 6 -284 -208
Net fee and commisston income 14 55 -41 =745
Net other operating 1ncome and expenses 68 78 -12 -154
Administrative expenses 551 654 -103 -157
Risk provisions 98 =271 369 =100
Result from ordinary activities 709 574 35 235
Extraordinary result -70 -81 11 -134%
Taxes -0z -10 08 -800
Net income for the financial year before profit transfer 641 503 138 274
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 Change
€ milhon € million € milhon %
Balance Sheet
Total assets 10,135 8 137769 -3,6411 ~264
Equty 4519 8766 -4247 =454
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 Change
%o Y% %o
Key Figures
Tier 1 ratio 168 159 [ 57
Cost/Incomne Ratio 475 a37 38 87
Return on equity before taxes 96 56 40 Q7
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 Change
Number Number Number %
Employees
Employees {annual average) 274 294 -20 -68
Rating
Fitch Rating for Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG
—~long-term A-
- short-term F1
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Management Report of Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG

At a Glance

Westdeutsche Immobilien Bank AG (Westlmmo) has been a wholly owned subsidiary of Erste Abwicklungs-
anstalt AoR (EAA) since 2012 Westlmmoe has pursued its hmited activity as a commercial real estate
financing specialist on an unchanged basis

Based on the cessation of new business activities imposed by the European Comimission, Westimmo
15 only available to provide its existing customers with loan renewals and to a hmited extent to top up
existing commitments in order to implement restructuring and/or maintenance measures Inaddition,
it actively manages its cover pools

In addition to Westlmmo's limited business activity, 1ts loan and bond portfolios were reduced as a result
of the carve-out transaction executed in the past financial year, which bundled the assets, liabilities,
derivatives and contingent habilities inconsistent with the strategy of a Pfandbriefbank and transferred
them to EAA Following the carve-out, Westimmo has emerged as a focused and streamlined Pfand-
briefbank with a further improved nsk profile

The Bank did not make further use of maturing refinancing

Westimmoe made additional necessary adjustments to 1ts internal structures and processes in order to
generate cost savings The mamn focus during the planming and implementation of these measures 13
on mamntaining the functions required for the banking and Pfandbrief business, and ensuring the Bank's
marketability

Loan renewals amounted to €0 8 biilhon in the past financial year (previous year €1 2 billion) Net
interest income amounted to € 107 6 milhon, down 20 2% on the prior-year figure of €134 8 million
Adrministrative expenses declined by 15 3% to €54 2 million over the same period

Profit after tax amounted to € 64 1 milhon {previous year €50 3 million)

Carve-out transaction

The assets, habilities, derivatives and contingent habilities that were inconsistent with the strategy of
a Pfandbrief bank were transferred at their carrying amounts to EAA KG, which s heid by the parent
EAA, under a carve-out and transfer agreement in accordance with the Umwandlungsgesetz (UmwG —
German Reorganisation Act) dated 11/12 June 2014, with retroactive effect from 1 Januvary 2014
The agreement was registered in the commercial register in Mainz on 30 July 2014 The Bank's assets
decreased as a result of the transaction, reducing equity by €448,727,270 62 In this respect, com-
panison with the prior-year figures 1s only possible to a hmited extent

The necessary approval in accordance with Art 77 of the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) was
granted by the Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht {BaFin — Federal Financial Supervisory
Authornity) As part of its approval, BaFin established a future mimmum equity ratio requirement of ¢ %
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Since Westimmo's distributable capital and revenue reserves were insufficient to cover the decline in
assets resufting from the carve-out, EAA transferred €24 0 million to the capital reserves in accordance
with section 272(2) no 4 of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB - German Commercial Code) on 27 June 2014
The declhine in assets was subsequently offset against capital and revenue reserves

Westimmo's reported equity (including the fund for general banking risks) amounted toc €575 0 mullion
as at 31 December 2014

Corporate Environment
Westlmmo's organisationat and legal structure

Westlmmo 1s a bank that specialises in financing commercial real estate in Germany and abroad It
operates in the legal form of an Aktiengesellschaft {German stock corporation} In Germany, the Bank
operates a branch in Munster alongside its headquarters 1n Mainz Westlmmo 1s represented inter-
nationally by a branch in London and representative offices in Madrid, New York, Paris and Warsaw

Westlmmo's stiategy

Westlmmo's business strategy, Articles of Association and Managing Board bylaws are primar:ly deter-
mined by the European Commission’s decision on the restructuring In this context, the Bank focuses
on active cover pool and portfolio management In so doing, 1t meets all requirements of the Kredit-
wesengesetz (KWG — German Banking Act) and the Pfandbriefgesetz (PfandBG — German Pfandbrief
Act)

Westimmo 1s making the necessary capacity adjustments in connection with the reduction of its port-
folios and the Bank’s limited business oppertunities It is also reahigning its internal structures and

processes in order to cut costs

The existing business s being scaled back according to strict efficiency criteria, while continuing to
take into account factors that preserve the Bank's value so as to ensure that tt1s sellable

The Bank functions required for the banking and Pfandbrief business are maintained in full

Westhnmo'’s structute

WestImmeoe holds interests in direct investments and in real estate joint ventures, afthough these are
not matenial to its results

Ali of the remaining substdiaries of Westdeutsche ImmobilhienHolding GmbH (WIH Group} were trans-
ferred to EAA on 30 June 2014, with retroactive effect from 1 January 2074 As a result, Westimmo

further reduced the number of its subsidiaries in 2014

Westlmmo remamns a member of the Guarantee Fund of the Central Savings Banks in the Deutscher
Sparkassen- und Giroverband (DSGV — German Savings Bank Association)

Management Report
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Corporate management

The Managing Board conducts the business of Westimmo and 1s composed of the following members

with responsibility for the following areas

& Claus-Jurgen Cohausz, Chairman of the Managing Board
(Head Qffice Departments, Nattonal and International Market Segments,
Special Financing/Caprtal Markets, Treasury)

m Christiane Kurmisch-Wolff, Member of the Managing Board
(Accounting and Financial Reporting, Organisation/tT/Admimistration,
Retail Banking, Project and Process Management, Money Laundering/Compliance)

u Rainer Spielmann, Member of the Managing Board

(Risk Management, Credit Management, Property Valuation & Research,
Intensive Care and Work Qut Unit)

l.oan portfohio financing, customers and processes

Westimmo's loan portfolio primarnily covers Germany, the member states of the European Union and
North America In Western Europe, the main markets are the United Kingdem, France, Spain and the
Benelux countries, white in Central and Eastern Europe these are Poland and the Czech Republic

Westlmmo mainly finances office and retal properties, shopping centres, logistics centres, hotels,
residential properties and public sector facilities The Bank has concentrated on financing first-class

commercial properties in good locations

Westimmo meets the legal and business requirements for Pfandbrief banks and the Pfandbrief business

Its business activities include

® Prolonging expiring loans and selectively topping up existing loans for necessary restructuring and

maintenance measures to maintain the collateral value
= Replacing maturing refinancing
® Maintaining 1its cover pool, including the necessary overcollateralization

Westlmmo's main customer groups on both sides of the balance sheet are
® Nationa! and international investors

® Fund companies, insurance companies and pension funds

# Real estate companies

® Banks and savings banks
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[ntensive Care/Woik Out

Exposures where the risk situation has substantially deteriorated as documented by negative information
and indicators, or where payments are more than 30 days past due are presented to the Intensive Care
steering group in the form of a report detailing the substantial deterioration of the risk situation The
steering group decides on how to deal with the exposure going forward and on the measures that must
be putin place The Bank's aim 15 to assess the situation together with the customer at an early stage
by employing relevant specialists, and to avoid or mitigate the risk of losses If itis not possible to cure
the loan or transfer it back to standard processing, the exposure 15 transferred to the Intensive Care
and Work Out Unit after all the necessary measures have been agreed

Rcfinancing

In principle, Westimmo meets its short-term financing needs via the repe market, which primarily
serves to manage liquidity and cash positions

The Bank had adequate hquidity throughout the whole of 2014, and by the middle of the year had covered
1its entire financing requirements for 2014, leading toc a corresponding decrease n 1ssuing activity

The Bank received a total of €450 0 mullion in financing from the shareholder, of which the majority
was allocated to unsecured issues {€ 400 0 milhon} and the remainder to secured 1ssues (€50 0 million)

In 2015, the Bank's refinancing wilt be closely adjusted to the further progress of its business activities
and the resulting funding requirements

Key management indicators

As part of the management information system {M(5), the Managing Board 1s informed about develop-
ments at the Bank on a monthly basis using key performance indicators {(KPIs) and parameters These
primarily comprise the loan portfolio, the voelume of loan renewals, profit or loss before tax, the core
capital ratio, the cost/income ratio and the presentation of the iquidity situation The KPIs are used to
measure whether the various performance figures are wathin their defined target corridors Measures
are defined and put into practice in the event of any vaniances (f necessary, relevant KPls are reported
at shorter intervals Liquidity planning and management are based on the information stored n the
portfolio management systems, which 1s used to produce cash flow statements and payment planning
documents The Bank also uses information from the hquidity gap analysis for its strategic hquidity
planmng

Regulatory envionment

Westlmmo ss a universal bank governed by German law and 1s subject among other things to the pro-
visions of the Gesetz uber das Kreditwesen {(KWG - German Banking Act), the Mimimum Requirements
for Risk Management (MaRisk}, the Pfandbriefgesetz (PfandBG — German Pfandbrief Act), the Wert-
papierhandelsgesetz (WpHG - German Secunties Trading Act) and the capital and hquidity requirements
in accordance with Capital Requirements Directive {CRD 1V) and the Capital Requirements Regulation
{CRR)

Management Report
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CRD IV entered into force in Germany on 1 January 2014 together with the German CRD IV Implemen-
tation Act CRD IV and the CRR therefore replaced the regulatory regime n place untii the end of 2013
In1ts entirety

As before, compliance with the regulatory requirements 1s monitored by BaFin and Deutsche Bundes-
bank

The London branch of the Bank is registered in the Unsted Kingdom and is regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential Regulation Authority {PRA} The representative office in
Amenica is licensed in the State of New York and the Federal Reserve Bank (Fed) 1s the supervisory
authority responsible for it The remaining European representative offices have been registered with
their local supervisory authortties but are exclusively subject to German supervision

The Bank 1ssues Pfandbriefe in accordance with the provisions of the Pfandbrieigesetz (PfandBG -
German Pfandbrief Act), which defines comprehensive stabihity and security standards for this invest-
ment product Based on the regulatery requirements, the Bank maintains cover registers for the assets
used as cover for pubhic-sector Pfandbriefe and mortgage Pfandbriefe

Basel [T, CRD IV and CRR

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) published the first version of the Basel lll frame-
work on 16 December 2010 as a result of the financial crisis, with the aim of strengthening the banking
sector This draft has since been updated The new standards aim to define uniform global capital
requirements, rules on leverage ratios, and new hquidity standards for banks Using these standards
as a basis, the responsible EU institutions developed the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) as
requirements that enter directly into force, and the Capital Requirements irective (CRD IV) as rules
that must be transposed into national law Both pieces of legislation were pubhished on 27 June 2013
and came into force on 1 January 2014

In 2012, the Bank launched a project to implement the Basel Il requirements and the corresponding
EU regulatory framework {CRD IV and CRR) on the basis of the requirements available at the time,
which was continued in 2014 and implemented in the reporting period, as planned The corresponding
notifications were submitted appropnately and on time

Advanced Internal Raungs-Based Appioach and credit riskh model

The Bank has been using the Advanced Internal Ratings-Based Approach (AIRBA) since 1 January
2008 to determine 1ts regulatory capital requirements, and estimates the loss given defauit (LGD) and
conversion factors in addttion to the probability of default {PD) The Bank uses internally developed
rating procedures, which are regularly reviewed for suitabihty using standardised procedures and
adjusted f required, for its real estate financing 1n all customer and product segments This does not
include exposures to banks, central governments and regional governments or local authorities, or
retail chent financing (residential construction financing} |n these cases, capital requirements are
determined in accordance with the rules governing the Credit Risk Standardised Approach under the
CRR The IRBA coverage ratio amounted to 98 % (RWA) as at 31 December 2014
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The Bank's loss given default {LGD) concept i1s used to estimate recoverable amounts for all relevant
types of collateral These recoverable amount estimates are based on the Bank's own historical data
and experience, as well as data on recoverable amounts and hquidation periods from a joint project
set up by the Verband deutscher Pfandbnefbanken (the Association of German Pfandbrief Banks),
which are sourced from the latter’s subsidiary, vdp Expertise GmbH

Market Environment 2014
Macloeconomic environment

The financial markets in Europe and North America were dominated by low nterest rates and low
volatibty in 2014 In Europe, the economy was impacted by central bank policy and geopahtical crises
The European Central Bank (ECB) reduced its benchmark interest rate to 0 05 % during the course
of the year, with the deposit rate falling to -0 2% for the first time n the currency umen’s history
The ECB pushed forward with its expansionary monetary policy at the end of the year, launching its
third covered bond purchase programme In the eurozone and extending its longer-term refinancing
operations (LTROs) Trade sanctions against Russia as a result of the Ukraine ¢risis caused uncertainties
on the market, leading companies to hold back on investments The inflation rate in the eurozone fell
steadily due to the sharp drop in ail prices as the year progressed This situation was reinforced by the
low interest rate environment

China’s economic growth slowed to 7 4 %, which had a dampening effect on global growth

The economic situation improved in the USA, with the positive effects visible on the labour market
and in consumer spending The US Federal Reserve called an end to quantitative easing in the autumn,
although the increase in the benchmark interest rate that had been expected as the year progressed
failed to matenalise Overall, yields on long-term US government bonds were noticeably higher than
in the eurczone, something seen only rarely in the last two decades

European Union

Growth n the European Union 1s estimated at 1 3 % for 2014, with the eurozone traihng behind as in the
previous year, at 0 8% Within the eurozone, growth rates were mixed While there was considerable
growth in countries such as Spain or Ireland where reforms have been implemented, the French economy
saw weaker growth and Italy was the only eurozone member to remain in recession, recording growth
of ~04°% In Central and Eastern Europe, Poland saw positive economic growth due to lower un-
employment and strong domestic consumption The trade sanctions against Russia had a negative
impact on export-driven nations in the course of the year Companies and investors with hinks to Russia
were also hit by the substantial deterioration in the country’s economzc and financial situation

The drop In energy prices as the year progressed, high unemployment and weak economic growth led
to declining and extremely low inflation rates throughout Europe AtQ 4%, the eurozone inflation rate
was well below the ECB’s target of just under 2% Government bond yields saw a sharp drop in the
peripheral countries, with some falling to below their pre-crisis levels in December Nonetheless, it
was not fully possible to overcome the uncertainties relating to sovereign debt

Management Report
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Germany

According to current calculations, the German economy expanded by 1 5% in full-year 2014 Howev-
er, the economic situation grew notuceably bleaker in the second half of the year Developments in
manufacturing industry and investments were disappointing during the course of the year Exports
remained healthy despite the sanctions related to the Ukraine conflict and other geopolitical crises
Cn the labour market, the working population exceeded the 42-million mark for the first tme The
construction industry saw a sharp increase in construction activity at the beginning of the year This
dropped in the second half of the year however, leadtng us to conclude that construction activity will
return to normal levels

United States

With GDP growth of 2 4 %, economic output in the USA continued on the moderate upward trend
observed in the previous two years The Federal Reserve’s withdrawal of quantitative easing bolstered
the steady positive trend on the labour market Early indications point to strong growth in the manu-
facturing industry and consumer spendingin the coming year Although the strong dolar had a negative
effect, the low o1l prices helped consumers

Markets for commercial real estate

Asset values on Westlmmo's markets were mixed during the year While real estate asset values saw
considerable growthin the UK and the USA, there was a decline in France and the Netherlands Asset
values remained stable in Germany and Poland Investors were still prepared to pay higher prices due
to the ongoing low interest rate environment and the lack of alternative investment opportunities As
a result, inttial yields in prime locations remamned constant Some markets saw a decrease in yield
spreads between prnime and secondary locations There was positive growth in the previously crisis-hit
countries, in particutar Spain Although the Spanish real estate market continued to be dominated by
the crisis, market signals pointed to an improvement in the situation

Germany

The current low interest rate environment buoyed real estate investments in both commercial and
residential properties In 2014, transaction volumes for commercial properties almost returned to the
pre-cnisis levels seen in 2007 Investor demand concentrated on properties with prime sites in estab-
hished locations At the same time the growth in rental prices was somewhat muted, with next to no
increase (n commercial real estate asset values

In some citses, the situation in the residentiai segment was tense as local demand outstripped supply
Elsewhere, structural vacancies in the residential segment gained increased prominence Regulatory
authorities addressed the imbalance between supply and demand in large cities using rental caps,
although the effects of this are not yet visible On the contrary, regulating prices could result in a
further shortage of residential property
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United Kingdaom

The economic recovery, with growth of roughly 2 7 % n 2014, was reflected in positive take-up and
imitial rental price increases on regional office markets As a consequence, investors turned therr
attention back to properties on regicnal markets, particularly as the supply of first-class properttes in
prime London locations was insufficient to meet investor demand Decreased risk premiums caused
the spread in ytelds between London and the regional markets to narrow Office properties in the UK
saw strong asset value growth driven by increases in rental prices in London and the dechne in yields
in the regions

France

Although office space take-up and deal flow point to a recovery in the commercial real estate market,
the economic situation 1s best described as difficult Demand in the lle-de-France reqgion focused on
a small number of first-class properties, while there was a slight drop in some prime rents Prime
properties saw a high level of investor interest however, putting yields under pressure from demand
in the prime segment as well as the low interest rate environment The spread in yields between first-
class and secondary locations remained, especially as significant risk premiums were seen in sub-markets
outside the Panis CBD Office property asset values remained in decline overall, driven primarily by
the decrease In rents

Spain

Aithough the office markets in Madrid and Barcelona saw vacancies and prime office rents stabilise,
there 1s still no comprehensive increase In rental prices to report The low volume of new builds
encouraged a rapid recovery in the office markets Investor interest has increased markedly in expec-
tation of a recovery on the market This can be seenin the increased deal flow, primarily due to large-
volume investments

Central Europe

Poland, Westlmmo's most significant Central European real estate market, 1s experiencing an upsurge
in new office construction projects, of which to date only a fraction have been pre-leased Vacancy
rates and rent levels for prime properties in Warsaw and other cities were stable in 2014 By contrast,
the situation for older properties became increasingly more competitive as the year progressed Even
so, there 1s significant investor interest in Polish commercial real estate, which generated attractive
returns due to the low interest rate environment

North America

In the USA, the economic recovery and improved employment situation had a positive effect on the
office rental markets Although there was continued steady growth in both take-up and average rents,
this was significantly more restrained than in previous phases of the recovery Rental price growth in
Westlmmo's office rental markets 1s hugher than the national average, with the exception of Washington
D C where a large vacancy surplus 1s still causing weaker rental price growth The low interest rate
environment 1s also having a positive effect on commercial real estate deal flow in the USA While
residential investments have proved popular among investors i1n recent years, thewr attention 15 now
increasingly turning back to commercial properties As a consequence, returns on Westimmo's markets
are considerably below the national average, something emphasised by mvestors’ appetite for first-
class properties in the core cities

Management Report
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Markets tor commercial real estate financing

There were positive tendencies on the market for commercial real estate financing in 2014 The results
of the European Central Bank’s Asset Quality Review (AQR) towards the end of October 2014 also
boosted market confidence

Although the previous two years had seen further dechnes in Pfandbriefbanks’ portfolios and lean
commitments, this was no longer the case in 2014 According to the Association of German Pfandbrief
Banks (vdp), international financing portfolios saw a slight increase of 1 5% n the first half of the year
Portfolio volumes remained stable overall until halfway through the year, although there was a significant
8 5% year-on-year increase in loan commitments Access to medium- and long-term real estate
financing was less restricted than in the two preceding years

Estimates by the German Real Estate Finance Index (DhFt) indicate that financing conditions improved
progressively over the course of the year, and there was a further overall increase in hquidity

LTV ratios for prime European properties with good eccupancy rates averaged 65 % -80 % at the end
of the year Margins experienced a downward trend year-on-year due to the increase in competition
Investors and lenders also increasingly fell back on secondary locations, not least due to the continuing
Intense competition in core properties

Summary by the Managing Board on the Development
of Westlmmo 1n 2014

2014 was a very successful year for Westimmo despite sts still imited business activities and the
associated lack of new business, as well as the decline in the Bank's interest-bearing portfolios The
break-even result imtially planned for 2014 was clearly exceeded, due primarily to the unexpectedly
positive credit nisk result and the partial reversal of the fund for general banking risks 1n accordance
with section 340g of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB — German Commercial Code) Profit amounted to
€64 1 mubon and will be transferred in full to EAA under the profit transfer agreerment

In 2014, Westimmo continued to concentrate on actively managing its cover pools and renewing existing
loan commitments, as well as on continuously adapting 1ts structures and workflows to reflect the
change in its business situation Thanks to the carve-out, the Bank has emerged as a focused and
streamhned Pfandbriefbank with an improved and still well-balanced risk profile, together with even
higher fungability

At €0 8 biflion in 2014, following €1 2 unllion 1n the previous year, the volume of loan renewals shows
that Westimmo remains a respected and reliable real estate financing partner for its existing customers

The borrower-specific risk provisions amounted to € 192 5 million, compared with an expense of €33 3
mithon the previous year This highhghts the continuing good quality of the loan portfoiio

Maturing refinancing was ehminated accordingly in the past financial year
The good business performance was also boosted by the decline in admimistrative expenses, which

fell by around 15 3% year-on-year and were also reflected in the healthy cost/income ratio {CIR) of
47 5% Cost savings made a significant contribution here
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Earnings

The Bank’s earnings were mainly dominated by the reduced credit risk provisions Netinterestincome
dechined from €134 8 rmilhon 1n 2013 to € 107 é mullion, and includes netincome of € 17 5 million from
closing out derivatives used to hedge interestrate risk (previous year €5 0 million expense) Net interest
tncome also includes netincome from early repayment penalties in the amount of €5 é million {previous
year €13 9 mallion) and interest expenses from the early repayment of borrower’s note loans amounting
to €22 3 million {previous year €14 6 million)

Net fee and commission income decreased to €1 4 miilion {previous year €5 5 nillion}

Administrative expenses dechned by around 15 3% year-on-year to €54 2 million (previous year
€64 0 million), which also made a significant contribution to earnings performance This drop was due
to the reduction in other administrative expenses from €30 5 million to €23 1 mullion and the decrease
n personnel expenses from €33 5 million to €311 million 1in connection with the reduction tn the
number of employees

Income from reversals of write-downs of end valuation allowances on other long-term equity invest-
ments, shares in affiiated companies and securities classified as fixed assets amounted to €0 8 million
in 2014 Inthe previous year, we reported write-downs of and valuation allowances on other long-term
equity investments, shares in affiliated companies and secunties classified as fixed assets amounting
to €8 6 millton that were primanly attributable to the sale of subsidiary WIB Real Estate Finance Japan
K K

Adequate account was taken of the risks from the Bank’s real estate lending business
The fund for general banking risks was reduced by €24 0 million

Income from profit pooling and profit transfer agreements amounted to €0 04 million (previous year
€14 8 million} The primary reason for the high income in the previous year was a non-recurring factor
recorded by the subsidiary West Zwanzig GmbH relating to the successful repayment of a loan receivable
and liquidation of real estate collateral for which a valuation allowance had been recognised

Net other operating income and expenses of €6 6 million (previous year €7 8 million) are attributable
in particular to the reversal of provisions, income from service fees and maturity-related effects from
discounting of provisions and unwinding of discounts

The result fram the Bank’s ordinary activities improved signficantly from €57 4 mithen tin 2013 to
€70 9 million in the year under review

The extraordmnary result of €-7 0 million 15 due to the addition to restructuring provisions (previous
year €-8 2 milhon}

The profit after tax of €64 1 million {previous year €50 3 millton} was transferred in full to EAA under
the profit transfer agreement This includes €24 0 millien attributable to reversal from the fund for
general banking risks
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FFinancial position and net assets

Westimmo's total assets amounted to €10 1 bullion as at 31 December 2014 This represents a decline
of 26 8 % as agamst the figure of €13 8 bilhon recorded as at 31 December 2013

Receivables from customers declined to € 7,537 1 million (previous year €10,708 1 milhon) due to the
reduction in the portfolios, the lack of new business and the carve-out

Bonds and other fixed-income securities declined to € 1,525 3 millton {previous year €1,909 7 million},
primarily as a result of the carve-out

The significant decrease in securitised habilites to €1,531 4 million {previous year €3,437 2 million}
and n habiities to customers to € 6,308 6 millign (previous year €7,661 % milhon) is related to the
Bank’s business development and the associated reduction n its refinancing requirements

The change in other assets to €6 4 mitlion (previous year €36 9 million) was due in particular to the
settlement of prior-year recesvables relating to the profit transfer by subsidiaries in the amount of €14 8
million and the successful disposal of a rescue acquisition with a carrying amount of €12 8 muliton

Please refer to the relevant disclosures in the notes for information on the type and matunity structure
of habihties

Other habilities increased to €105 3 million (previous year €60 2 milhion) largely due to currency
translation adjustments (€ 35 2 million, previous year €1 0 million) and the liabihties from the profit
transfer to EAA (€64 1 million, previous year €50 3 milhon)

Reported equity declined to €451 9 milhon {previous year €876 6 million) due to the carve-out The
capital reserves were increased by €24 0 million in connection with the carve-out and to strengthen
the Bank's equity

The Bank’s total capital ratio in accordance with the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) amounted
to 17 25 % as at 31 December 2014 (previous year 17 04 % n accordance with the old version of the
Solvabilitatsverordnung (SolvV —German Solvency Regulation}) The core capital (Tier 1) ratio was 16 83 %
as at the balance sheet date (previous year 15 92 % in accordance with the old version of the ScivV)

Westlmmao's return on assets in accordance with section 26a of the KWG, calculated as the ratio of
net profit to total assets, amounted to 0 0%

Please refer to the relevant disclosures in the notes for information on off-balance-sheet commitments
including derivative transactions entered into to hedge against interest rate and currency nisk
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Objectives of financial management

The objective of Westlmmo's financial management is always to have a sufficient level of own funds
and liquidity 1n order to ensure long-term stability Based on the risk strategy, the goal 1s to secure
refinancing at matunities that are generally matched A detailled breakdown of the residual maturities
of the receivables and habihties may be found in the notes, and more details on hiquidity risks are
presented in the Risk Report

Lending business portfoho

The volume of recervables from banks decreased i the reporting period from €996 1 millionto €994 4
milhon Receivables from customers dechned to €7,537 1 million (previous year €10,708 1 million)
due to the reduction in the portfolios, the lack of new business and the carve-out

Employees

Westimmo employed 269 people as at year-end 2014 The total number of employees decreased by 6 6 %
year-on-year {previous year 288) The decline in employee numbers i1s primarily due to Westimmo's
hmited business opportunities The Bank 1s making further necessary capacity adjustments and 1s
optimising internal structures and processes in its departments All redundancy agreements signed
in 2014 were made on a voluntary basis or in connection with early retrement arrangements

Westlmmo again offered its employees a range of internal and external continuing prefessional develop-
ment (CPD) opportunities in 2014 The Bank provides CPD offerings designed to develop and enhance
employees’ prafessional and language skills, as well as improving their flexibility to operate in different
areas Employees who take on a different role or increased responsibibties are offered custormised
professional development opportunities

Westimmo's Soctal Commilment

As part of Westlmmo's corporate sccial responsibility, the Bank supports community projects by
making donations The Bank used its 2014 Christmas donation to support the work of international
humanitarian orgamsation Medecins Sans Frontieres

Activily 1n associations

In addition to being a member and taking part in the activities of the Association of German Pfandbrief
Banks (vdp) and the Association of German Public Banks (VOB), Westimmo is alse a founding member
of the Zentraler Immobihenausschuss @ V {ZIA - Central Real Estate Committee} Westlmmo sees its
memberships as important for supporting and helping to shape measures relating to economig, legal,
pohtical, or tax-related 1ssues in the real estate industry at association level

Management Report
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Risk Report
Risk management and end-to-end controls

Extensive risk management and risk monitoring activities are performed for ali of the Bank's depart-
ments and processes Risk management s an integral part of Westlmmo's strategic and operational
end-to-end management Risk management is also a core component of the Bank's three lines of de-
fence approach, implemented as part of the Mimmum Requirements for Risk Management (MaRisk)

The business and risk strategy pursued by the 8ank is critically influenced by the downsizing targets
agreed with EAA to ensure compliance with the winding-up plan on the basis of the decisions made
by the European Commission The individual companents of the overarching concept and the strategic
focus are agreed in close consultation with the governing bodies and EAA They are also reviewed on
aregular basis as part of the Bank's risk tolerance concept, taking into account the Bank's risk-bearing
capacity and nisk strategy The Bank’s aim 1s to closely integrate and coordinate ali areas involved in
the lending and other key banking process with a view to ensuring a uniform risk culture, identifying
and reporting risks as early as possible and taking steps to counter them in good time

(hgamsational sepairation of functions and risk categories

With the exception of the residential construction financing business, which 1s low-nisk in nature due
to its classification as standardised retail banking, monitoring of key risks to the Bank continues to be
functionally and orgamisationally separated from risk management The head of the Risk Management
department also performs the duties of risk controller, ensuring crgamisational separation between
this oversight function and operational business respansibihities

Risk categories/types Departments/bustness area
tor risk management for nsk monitoring

Counterparty credst risk

Credit risks Front Office areas Credit Management Intensive Care

{indwidual and portfolio level} and direct equity investments and Work Qut Unit, Risk Management,
Property Valuation & Research and
Accounting and Financial Reporting

Counterparty and Treasury Credit Management, Risk Management
country risk and Accounting and Fmancial Reporting
Markethiquidity nsk Treasury Risk Management and

Accounting and Financial Reporting

Operational risk Business areas Risk Management, Legal Human Resources,
Board Administrative Staff/Group Development
and Money Laundenng/Compliance

Business risk Business areas Board Administrative Staft/Group Development
and Risk Management

Counterparty credit risk 1s momitored at portfoho level by the Credit Management, Intenssve Care and
Work Out Unit, Risk Management and Property Valuation & Research departments As a rule, Credit
Management 1s responsible for preparing and approving loan renewal apphcations on a case-by-case
basis and for the ongoing momtaring and management of individual exposures, in consultation with
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the relevant front office departments The Asset Quality department, which 1s part of the Bank's Cred-
it Management department, ensures ratings consistency and the correct regulatory treatment of
collateral in accordance with the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) The Intensive Care and Work
Cut Unitis responsible for problem loan processing and the management of loans exposed to default
risk Property and location appraisals and market valuations are performed by Property Valuation &
Research or carried out by external appraisers and subsequently reviewed for reasonableness

Together, the four departments mentioned comprise the Bank's back office They haise closely and
report to the Managing Board member responsible for the back office In addition, the Bank has a
Group Risk Committee (GRC) that receives quarterly reperts on the Bank’s overall rnisk situation, and
an Assets/Liabihties Management Committee {(ALMC) that assesses market and hquidity risk every
month and decides on necessary measures The GRC consists of the members of the Managing Board
and the heads of Risk Management, Credit Management, Internal Audit and Board Administrative
Staff/Group Development, the members of the ALMC are the members of the Managing Board and the
heads of Treasury, Risk Management, and Property Valuation & Research

The independent Internal Audit department checks the propriety of all the Bank's activities and
processes, as well as the effectiveness and appropriateness of its nsk management and internal control
procedures, using a rtsk- and systems-based approach It reports directly to the full Managing Board

Counterparty credit risk

For Westlmmo, counterparty credit risk consists primarily of risks associated with the lending business
Counterparty and country rnisk play a comparatively minor role due to the credit ratings involved The
main responsibilities of Risk Management, Credit Management, the Intensive Care and Work Qut Umt
and Property Valuation & Research in this context are as follows

= Definition of methods and standards, mcluding reviewing the credit risk strategy (Risk Management),

m Implementation of regulatory and strategic requirements within the Bank’s lending business at the
level of the Bank's structures and workflows {(Risk Management),

m Back office approval, rating and monitoring of, and support for, credit exposures using suitable
early warning indicators, as well as property and location appraisals and market valuations {Credit
Management, the Intensive Care and Work Out Unit and Property Valuation & Research),

= Regular analysis of the loan portfolio, as well as intensive care and problem loan processing {Credit
Management, the Intensive Care and Work Out Unit and Risk Management)

As a result of the carve-out transaction implemented effective 30 June 2014, Westlmmo holds only
direct investments that are mainly monitored as part of the lending process The Bank’s remaining
investments will be further reduced in accordance with the divestment strategy specified in the credit
risk strategy
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Lending business

The applicable external and internal rules for the Bank’s lending business are continually reviewed
and enhanced, and are fully decumented

Westimmo's business activities are limited to prolonging loans, any necessary restructuring, and
secondary market transactions tc maintain and optimise 1ts cover pool, as well as to avoid or reduce
economic loss when settling exposures

No secondary market transactions have been implemented by the Bank so far

The relevant front office areas are primarily responsible for maintaining customer relationships and
assisung in lean renewais

A Prolongation and Asset Management Committee (PAM) isn place to assist in the systematic down-
sizing of the Bank The Committee meets once a week or as necessary It advises in particular on the
quality and structure of loan renewals and suitable exit measures In consultation with the responsible
Managing Board members and the relevant front and back office departments

Crediat risk sirategy and 11sk pohicy

The Bank has estabhshed a credit risk strategy that 1s reviewed at least once a year and adjusted If
necessary It s resolved by the Managing Board and discussed with the supervisory body It covers
the planned development cof the Bank's entire lending business The credit risk strategy continues to
serve as the basis for reducing the loan portfolio while preserving the value of the assets The over-
arching goal s to largely stabilise the qualty of the portfolio over the downsizing period and to ensure
comphance with banking supervisory ratios and the requirements of the Pfandbriefgesetz (PfandBG —
German Pfandbrief Act) The credit risk strategy comprises general nisk principles relating to the real
estate lending business, supplementary qualitative and quantitative specifications are combined 1n
risk guidelines

Ciedit rish monitoring ang eatly warning measures

Credit exposures are monitored as needed, but at least annually, on the basis of clearly defined criteria
The resukts are systematically documented If the risk situation of an exposure deteriorates significantly,
this 1s reported to the responsible managers, as well as tc Risk Management and the Bank's Internal
Audit department Additional integral components of the risk monitoring process are portfolio analysis
on an ongoing and event-driven basis, direct monmitoring of the cash flows relating to specific exposures
and monttoring of comphance with contractually agreed risk parameters
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High-risk loans are also entered in a watch list This serves as a tool fer planning and monitoring the
measures needed to be taken in individual cases, supporting nisk reporting throughout the Group, and
as a central information pool

The loans concerned are immediately transferred to Intensive Care or the Work Qut Unit Restructuring
concepts and further measures are then examined and, where necessary, implemented in consultation
with the relevant loan processing departments, with the aim of a loss-free exit

Valuation of collateral

The values of collateral that are calculated and defined in the lending process are reviewed on a regular
basis, but no later than once a year as part of the annual credit review, and adjusted where necessary
using an impairment test Property Valuation & Research either apprasses eligible properties itself or
arranges appropriate property appraisals To ensure a uniform standard in these cases, the results are
then examined internally and/or their reasonableness 1s reviewed

Risk moenitormg at porttohio level

Changes in the Bank's credit nisk are monitored on the basis of monthly analyses and, where necessary,
supplemented with sector- and country-specific sub-portfolio analyses, including stress scenanos
The results are an integral part of the Bank's regular risk reporting The total loan portfolio (loans to
investors and retail customers, loans to pubhc sector borrowers and banks, and customer derivatives
and treasury transactions) amounted to € 10 0 billion as at 31 December 2014, a decrease of €3 & bllion
or 27 5 % against the beginning of the year

The portfolio of loans to investors amounted to €5 3 bilion on the reporting date This represents a
dechine of around €2 9 billion or 35 4 % against the previous year (€8 2 billion} due to scheduled and
unscheduled repayments at the same time as the cessation of new business activities and the transfer
of the lending business inconsistent with the strategy of a Pfandbriefbank to EAA as part of the carve-
out

The following analyses relate solely to the portfolio of loans to investors (excluding customer derivatives)
of €5 3 billion as at 31 December 2014
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The portfolio of loans to investors can be broken down into the rating categornies given below as
at 31 December 2014 (€ million}

3,500 .|
39 0%
+17PP
3.000 |
2,500 __|
3000 24 4%
' ] +2 7PP
1,500
| 14 0% 9 8%
1000 | +11PP -2 8PP 6 2%
-3 2PP
500 51% 15%
— -2 6PP
0% +31PP
Tl e n 1
o] .
A1-A2 A3-B1 B2-B4 B5-C2 €3-C5 D1-D2 D3-E  PU+NRC + Total Ratings
unrated caverage
Dec 13 0 1,788 3,066 1061 1039 168 771 337 8,230 99 8%
W Dec 14 o 1290 2,061 738 519 270 328 # 5,287 100 0%
At €3 4 billion, 63 4% (previous year 59 0%) of the commercial loans and advances to customers
and loan guarantees are allocated to rating categories A1 to B4 Including rating categones B5 to
C2 {lower investment grade segment), 77 3% of the loans have a good to satisfactory risk structure
(previous year 71 9 %)
Therating procedures used to classify the risks are used for ali investor transactions The sole exceptions
are agricultural loans and commercial loans below the materiahity threshold or that meet other critenia
for not being rated For these, the Bank has opted to apply the “partiat use” approach in accordance
with the CRR The same apphes to the portfolio of private residential construction loans and exposures
to banks, central governments and regional governments or local authorities
The portfolio 1s broken down by location as follows (€ million)
2,000
27 6% 25 394
1,000 15 4%
92% I 91% 74% 5 6%
0 || | | m
Germany USA UK FR Spain Other No specific Total
property
Dec 13 2122 892 1,127 995 665 1,961 458 8,230
B Dec 14 1,460 486 814 480 390 1,365 294 5 287
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27 6% or €1 5 illon {previous year 25 8%) of the portfolio represents loans relating to German
properties The international portfolio s distributed across 17 countries The largest foreign sub-port-
folios are the United Kingdom with 15 4 % (previous year 13 7 %) or €0 8 billion, ahead of the USA with
9 2% (previous year 10 8% or €0 5 billion and France with 91 % (previous year 121%) or €05
billion, followed by Spain with €0 4 billion or 7 4% (previous year 81%) At €14 billion or 25 8%
(previous year 23 8 %), the remaining portfohio reported under “Other” 1s mainly distributed across
various western and eastern European countries 5 6% of the loans are not direct property loans
(previous year 579%) These primarily comprise company loans secured by or relating to real estate

The breakdown by property type 1s as follows (€ milhion)

4,000 ___|
3000 |
2,000 |
1,000 ]
o - I |
Office Retail Residential Other No specific Total
outlets properties property
Dec i3 3,942 1,755 332 1,733 468 8,230
B Dec 14 2,453 1,269 214 1,058 294 5,287

AL €2 4 billion or 46 4 % (previous year 479 %), office properties represent the largest sub-portfolio
The share of retail properties 1s 24 0% or €1 3 bullion {previous year 213 %) The portfolio of resi-
dential property loans {commercial customers) declined by € 118 0 million or 35 5% to €0 2 billion

The expected loss developed as follows (€ milhon)

500 |
000 | 3099
2500 |
2000 —— 264.8 — 1707 162 2
1560 . '
000 142.1
500 __|
00 451 281 28 & ;
Dec 13 June 14 Sept 14 Dec 14

B of which performing positons

of which non-performing positions

The expected loss is based on the inputs used to calculate the regulatory capital requirements prob-
ability of default, exposure at default and loss given default
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Changes 1n risk provisions

As a matter of principle, risk provisions n the Bank’s commerciat lending business are calculated on a
case-by-case basis Loans must exhibit one or more trigger events (e g9 >45 days past due or insolvency}
to quabfy for impairment testing or for recognition of a risk provision

The nisk provisions deducted from assets in the lending business, including specrfic valuation allow-
ances on equity iInvestments and general valuation allowances, and excluding prowvisions for contingent
liabilities, decreased from €230 2 million to €132 9 million (=42 3 %) n the reporting period This
was attributable to the carve-out in particular Provisions for contingent habilities of €3 0 mulhon
{previous year €1 6 milhon) were also recognised

Secullttes

Investment securities portfolio

Westimmo’s portfoho does not include bonds issued by GIIPS states The corresponding disposals
were made together with the carve-out transaction

Country Principal amount Book value (€ million} Fair value {€ mithon}
(€ million) (incl the prorata interest) (without the prorata interest}

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 20713 31 Dec 20714 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Italy 0 3150 0 3223 0 3283
2020 500 509 536
2034 2650 2714 2747
Total 0 3150 0 3223 0 3283
Mceasurement

Westlmmo uses internal criteria to assess on the reporting date whether there 1s objective evidence
of permanent impairment of securities in the snvestment portfoho If such evidence exists, the financial
assets are subsequently analysed 1n more detail on a case-by-case basis Any impawment resulting
from this analysis takes the form of a direct write-down of the secunities concerned

No write-downs were necessary at the balance sheet date

Investments

The operational management and monitoring of equity investments 1s performed locally by the represen-
tatives of the companies responsible, who report to the Board Administrative Staff/Group Development,
Credit Management and Risk Management departments Strategic control at the equity investments 1s
performed by the Accounting and Financial Reporting department
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Medium-term plans are drawn up for the non-operational equity investments on an annual basis In
the period under review, the rnisks ansing from former strategic investments were again sigmficantly
reduced in accordance with the Bank’s business policy to a constructively even more insignificant
amount from a risk perspective The Bank's short-term plan 1s to further reduce 1ts investment port-
fohio and to transfer investments to EAA

The number of subsidiaries requiring support was further sigmficantly reduced through the transfer
of WIH Group to EAA with retroactive effect from 1 January 2014

The operationat investments primarily manage the remaining projects and regularly repert on their
development to the responsible bodies at the Bank The Bank had already resolved in 2010 to gradually
withdraw in full from participating in development projects as part of its focus on its core business,
real estate financing

Market risk

The Bank s a non-trading book institution It accepts market price under the terms of 1ts market risk
strategy, which 1s defined on the basis of the Bank's business policy and risk-bearing capacity For
Westimmo, market risk mainly consists of interest rate risk Currency risks are eliminated largely
using hedging instruments, and open foreign currency positions are restricted using volume fimits

The Risk Control function within the Risk Management department i1s responsible for measuring and
monitoring market nsk pasitions and for reporting in accordance with MaRisk (the Minimum Requirements
for Risk Management) Interest rate and currency risks are quantified using a value-at-risk model that
Is based on the historical simulation process Daily value-at-risk (VaR) calculations are based on a
confidence level of 99 % and a holding period of one day The Treasury department manages interest
rate risk primarily on the basis of interest rate sensitivities, which are calculated daily, for reporting
purposes these are broken down by maturity band and currency Where necessary, interest rate risk
1s hedged using derivatives

The VaR in 2074 was as follows
VaR for market risk in € milhon

VaR 2014 VaR at
Average Minimum Maximum 30 Dec 2014 30 Dec 2013
062 024 213 190 221

The average utilisation of the VaR hmt for interest rate and currency nisks was 14 4 % in the year
under review Limit utihsation at the end of the year was 63 4%
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Changes in VaR 1n the course of 2014 (€ million)
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In companson to 2014, VaR in the course of 2013 was as follows
Changes in VaR in the course of 2013 (€ milhon)
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The VaR has been calculated using a historical ssmulation process as from 3 April 2013

The quality of the VaR mode! i1s reviewed through regular backtesting This process compares the
hypothetical gains and losses with the values predicted by the VaR model ¢n a daily basis The appro-
priateness of the VaR model used 15 analysed regularly This analysis did not result in any need for
adjustment

The Bank performs weekly stress test simufations in order to obtain predichons of expected present
value losses under extreme conditions As required by the revised BaFin Circular 11/2011, Westimmo
calculates the effects of interest rate shocks in the banking book on a weekly basis These showed
that, in the year under review, the potential changes in present values for the assumed parallel shifts
are significantly below the hmits defined there
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The Managing Board ts informed on a daily basis of the Bank's risk position as part of the reporting
process Moreover, the Assets/Liabilities Management Committee (ALMC) receiwves monthly reports
on the latest market data and risk parameters The ALMC resolves the Bank's positioming on this basis

In addiion, market risk parameters and bimit utthsation figures, together with comments on them, are
integrated both in the risk report submitted monthly to the Managing Board and in the quarterly report
submitted to the supervisory bodies When necessary, the reports contain recommendations for the
respective decision-makers

Liquidity risk

The Bank defines iquidity risk as the risk of being unabie to meet current or future payment obligations
or only being able to meet them at unfavourable terms The primary aim of iquidity risk management
is to safeguard the ability to make payments and raise funding at all times The Bank has documented
rules on hquidity risk management, which also detail the steps to be taken to cope with hquidity
squeezes

Short-term and structural hiquidity are managed by the Bank's Treasury department Liquidity risk is
monitored continuously by Accounting and Financial Reporting, and Risk Management

Short-term hquidity risk 1s imited by law 1n accordance with the Liquiditatsverordnung {(LigV — German
Liqudity Regutation) In the year under review, the iquidity ratio in accordance with section 2 of the
LiqV was an average of 4 49 (previous year average of 3 35) The supervisory requirements were
fulfilled at all imes during the financial year

Westimme calculates and manages tts medwm-term iquidity requirements using a six-month hquidsty
forecast This compares the Bank'’s aggregate net cash flows with the potentially available unrestricted
central bank funding and the potential 1ssuance accaording to the cover register A variety of stress and
model assumptions are included when calculating the iquidity forecast figures The six-month liquidity
forecast distinguishes between a management scenario and a stress scenario Its stress test analyses
include both internal and general market causes The six-month liquidity forecast also incorporates
overviews of the hquidity reserve and of one-week and one-month liquidity

Risk Management uses a liquidity gap analysis toc monmitor the jong-term hquidity situation This deter-
mines any necessary hquidity requirement (deficit or shortfall} or possible iquidity overhang (surplus),
as the case may be, on the basis of all incoming and outgoing payments during a rolhing twelve-month
period

The hquidity summares form part of the regular reporting to the Managing Board Strategic hquidity
management decisions are made during the meetings of the ALMC and, if necessary, on an ad hoc
basis
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Market higuidity risk 1s the risk of only being able to liquidate assets on the market at a discount as a
result of extraordinary events The Bank counters this risk by maintaining a hquidity reserve in the form
of highly iquid, ECB-ehgible securities and additional unencumbered assets for general collateral
pooling, bilateral repao transactions and the KEV procedure for the submission and administration of
credit claims

There was an adequate hquidity everhang throughout the entire reporting period If necessary, the
Bank has an adequate hiquidity reserve and can cover additional iquidity requirements by pledging
securities for Bundesbank refinancing factities or in repo transactions

Opetational 115k

Operational risk management (ORM) at the Bank aims to avoid/reduce losses from operational risks
while taking account of cost-benefit considerations This 1s done using the Standardised Approach for
calculating risk capital apphcable since 1 July 2012

Operational nsk management 1s decentralised and 1s the responsibility of the individual departments,
which are suppcrted in this task by specialist orgamisational umits (Human Resources, Legal, Orgami-
sation, IT, etc ) Irrespective of this, the Risk Management department specifies centrally the framework
for an ORM system that 1s consistent across the Bank, and monitors whether the related activities are
being fully implemented

In addition to 1ts ongoing documentation of losses and risk indicators, the Bank validated the risk
indicators and performed a scenario analysis in the first quarter of the period under review, and carried
out a risk inventory in the third quarter of the period under review The risks identified here are taken
into account by the Bank using appropriate measures

The Risk Management department reports to the Bank’s goverming bodies on major operational risk
management 1ssues, both regularly and where necessary on an event-driven basis

Business risk

Business risk 1s managed by the departments on the basis of the strategic instructions issued by the
Managing Board and other bodies Financial Control/Strategic Corporate Planning, which is part of
the Board Administrative Staff/Group Development area, 15 one of the departments that monstors
business risks It produces the medium-term planning, provides management information on all parts
of the Bank and enhances the management methods used in consultation with the owner Italso coor-
dinates the establishment and expansion of decentralised financial control activities
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Internal controt and risk management system for the financial reporting process

The goal of an accounting-related internal control and risk management system (ICR} 15 to ensure
compliance with accounting standards and provisions as well as the propnety of the financial account-
Ing and reporting

Westimmo has implemented an ICR for the Bank’s financial reporting process that is suitable for its
business activities

Westimmo's accounting-related ICR mainly comprises guidehnes and processes that

m adequately ensure that transactions are recorded and accounted for in full, in a timely manner,
correctly and in the penied in which they occur, in accordance with the statutory and other provisions,
tn order to ensure published financial reporting that presents a true and fair view (propriety and
reliability of financial accounting and reporting),

® guarantee the reqular and timely provision of accounting data thatis relevant for business management
purposes to decision makers and executive bodies (internal reporting),

= adequately ensure that acquisitions and the use or disposal of assets that could have a material effect
on accounting are transparent,

= provide a suitable control and documentation environment (e g the separation of functions, adherence
to defined levels of approval and authority, compliance with the dual control principle when recording
transactions),

® govern the storage of documents that provide appropriate information on business transactions and
the use of assets

The effectiveness of the accounting-related !CR 1s momitored continuously Existing technical and
content-related controls are regularly reviewed by the Internal Audit department

In addition, the financial reporting processes are integrated with the entire bank's general operational
risk management process in order to avoid errors and misstatements (n financial statements or to
identify them at an early stage, and hence to ensure a true and fair view of the Bank's net assets, financial
position and results of operations

The Bank’s accounting policies are documented in electronic manuals and are available to all depart-
ments and subsidiaries

Annual, quarterly and monthly financiai statements are prepared according to an agreed schedule and
comphiance with this 1s monitored

New statutory and regulatory requirements are implemented and communicated in a timely manner,
depending on their scope and signisficance for the Bank this can take the form of orgamisationally
independent projects and written instructions, among other things All departments affected by the
1ssue concerned are in¢luded in this process
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The inclusion of staff from Accounting in the relevant risk and management processes ensures that
strategic and risk-related developments are also rapidly incorporated into accounting and reporting

Should transactions involving new products or markets and/or special purpose entities (SPEs) occur
during the downsizing of the Bank, these would be subject to the new product process (NPP} or SPE
process and would be coordinated by Risk Management The frontand back offices as well as Accounting

and Comphance are included in these processes

Overall 115k position

Overall risk position in accordance with the CRR

The Bank's averall risk position from a regulatory viewpoint was determined in financial year 2014 1n
accordance with the provisions of the Capital Requirements Regulation {CRR), and 15 as given below

€ million 31 Dec 2013 (SokvV) 31 Dec 2074 (CRR}
EKU RWA RWA

Capital requirements for

- Courterparty credit risk 408 13 5101 2 29295

— Market risk exposures Q7 87 178

- Qperational risk 311 3889 31t 4

- CVA - - 1120

Total 439 9 5498 8 33707

Total captal ratre 17 04% 17 25%

The requirements of the CRR were met throughout the year under review

Westlmma's economic risk capital

€ mithion 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2014
Limit Unhsation n % Limit  Uulisation n %

Credit risk 3800 23313 614 1800 1457 g09

Credst spread risk {cum} 2000 1465 733 500 ~208 -416

— Credit spread - 35

- Hidden habilities - 02

— Hidden reserves - -245

Market rnisk 680 198 291 268 170 634

Operational risk 376 376 100 0 302 302 100 0

Investment nsk 50 10 200 - - -

Total 6906 4382 635 2870 1721 600
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In addition to meeting supervisory capital requirements in accordance with the CRR, Westimmo's
end-to-end management s also based on an economic risk capital concept As partof the risk tolerance
concept established by the Bank in this context, the risk-bearing capacity — the ability to absorb any
risks that materialise at ali ttmes without external assistance —i1s quantified and hmits are assigned In
this way, the risk tolerance mits the maximum potential to accept risks, alongside and complementary
to the statutery capital requirements

The cover assets consist of hable capital as defined in the CRR report plus cutstanding profit parti-
cipation certificates and Tier |l capital with a residual term to matunity of up to three months, plus the
profit for the year generated as at the reference date, less the deficit from the value adjustment offset
in accordance with the CRR and less other business risks

In addition, economic rnisk capital imits have been established for each material type of risk that has
been defined, and compliance with these 1s monitored on an ongoing basis

Limit utthsation for credit nisk 1s calculated using aninternal credit portfollo model developed on the
basis of Moody's KMV system Economic credit risk capital 1s calculated using the exposure at default,
probability of default and loss given default, which the Bank — as an AIRBA mstitution — determines
internally

The calculation of economic capital 1s expanded to include the implemented capital planning process
that takes into account the dewnsizing plan resolved by the bank and a medium-term planning honizon

The investment portfolio 1s becoming successively less important due to the Bank's strategic down-
sizing Far this reason, in connection with the 2014 risk inventory 1t was resclved to classify investment
risk as no longer significant for the Bank from 31 December 2014, and for this to no longer be factored
into the calculation of the Bank's economic capital

Report on Post-balance Sheet Date Events

On 22 February 2015, EAA agreed to sell its Westimmo shares to a subsichary of Aareal Bank AG,
Wiesbaden The sale 1s subject to regulatory approval and other conditions, and is expected to be
completed in the second quarter of 2015 As part of the other conditions, a short financial year will be
established for the first half of 2015, a further carve-out transaction will be executed and parts of the
loan portfolio and securities wiil be transferred to EAA
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Report on Expected Developments
General ecanomic enviigninent

The global economy s expected to grow by around 3 0% in the coming year, with the majority of this
attributable to Asia and the USA As expected, the consumer price index will remain low on a global
scale, not least due to the drop in 01l prices

The low interest rates will continue to accompany and shape the global economy Although anincrease
in the benchmark interest rate seems hikely in the USA as the year progresses, 1n all probability this
will be moderate Following the ECB’s failure to achieve its goals with the interest rate cut and a new
covered bond purchase programme in 2014, 1t has broadened i1ts expansionary monetary policy with
the decision to start purchasing € 60 billion per month in eurozane members’ government bonds from
March 2015 This could strengthen riskier investments and raise medium-term expectations of inflation
The mixed growth rates 1n the currency areas will have a significant impact on exchange rates

In the eurozone, we expect almost all countries to return to growth This should prove healthy for the
single European market, and the depreciated eurc should further boost exports to other currency
areas Both factors are certain to stmulate an increase in corporate investments Nevertheless, fiscal
consolidation and the still high levels of unemployment in Europe will dampen growth

Outlook
Markets for commercial 1cal estate

The economic situation will continue to make its presence felt on the global rental markets The German
real estate markets are expected to remain stable, with shight growth being seen in the majority of them

In the UK, investor attention will continue shifting to properties in regional markets due to the short-
age of properties in prime London locations As a result, the spread in yields between London and the
regional markets will narrow and the UK will see a return to growth in office asset values across the
board By contrast, the commercial real estate markets will continue to polanise in France, a reflection
as well of the economy’s weak growth drivers and the resulting weak demand for space

Although there are expectations of a turning point on Spain’s commercial real estate market, both in
the rental price cycle and in the investment market, asset values will probably continue to drop until
the effects of this spread from the prime segment to the market as a whole
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Westimmo’s markets in the USA are experiencing a recovery or growth phase, with the exception of
Washington, D C Consequently, increasing rents and growing investor interest, as well as a further
recovery in secondary lccattons and markets, are expected to continue in the future

In Central Europe, investors will continue to focus on the politically stable Polish and Czech markets
In Poland, the volume of new builds may lead to corrections on the real estate market in the mechum
term

Markets for commercial 1eal estate financing

The continuing low interest rates raise the appeal of real estate as a stable form of investment We
continue to expect strong demand for real estate finance Banks’ activitias will fluctuate at around at
teast their current level despite the continuing activities of large, equity-rich investors and the alter-
native real estate financing available on the market Overall, the positive trend in investment activity
will continue

There 1s iIncreasing demand for properties in secondary locations or B properties, which had not been
the focus of Investors’ attention to date Thisin turn broadens the business opportunities for real estate
banks We consider it realistic that real estate lenders will increasingly offer financing in this segment
too, given the intense competition and the reduced margins

Refinancing markets

Given the meagre pace of growth and the extremely low inflation rates, the ECB will maintain its
highly expansionary monetary policy for some time to come The cendstions for an attracttve financing
environment remain in place Investors’ pursuit of returns will cause issuers’ refinancing costs to remain
at a fow level, both in the uncovered and the Pfandbrief businesses

Expected developments at Westlmmo

EAA began a new sale process by publhishing a notice of sale in mid-May 2014 Potential investors were
requested to promptly submit 2 written expression of interest to participate in the process

EAA continued the sale process with seiected bidders This phase included due dihgence and expert
discussions At the end of 2014, several bidders submitted offers to purchase Westimmo

As of today, the Managing Board expects the transaction to close by mid-2015 In this case, the
assumptions described here with regard to Westimmo's development and strategy would change and
would be aligned with the buyer’s strategic approach
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Westimmo will remain a subsidiary of EAA inits current form until final completion of the sale It will
maintan its ability to act and do business as a real estate bank with a banking hcence and a Pfandbrief
licence In addition, it will remain bound by the decision by the European Commission and will there-
fore only be active tin providing its existing customers with loan renewals and to a hmited extent in
topping up existing commitments tn order to implement restructuring and/or maintenance measures

From today's viewpoint, successful completion of the sale process will render the above restrictions
and conditions obsclete Until then, the Bank's assets will be further reduced based on the shareholder's
approved winding-up plan while mimimising the adverse effects on capital and net profit Irrespective
of this, the risk- and earmings-driven management of 1ts loan portfolio and active management of its
cover pool remain a strategic goal for Westimmo

The plan s to establish a short financial year for the first half of 2015 and to implement a further carve-
out transaction to transfer assets in the amount of approximately €395 0 mulhon and habilities in the
amount of approximately €325 0 miilion to EAA EAA will settle the difference of approximately €70 0
million via a payment to Westimmo No withdrawals from equity are planned in this regard

Refinancing volumes will continue to decrease in 2015 in line with the reduction in the Bank's assets

The number of employees will also continue to dechne due to the reduction in loan portfohios To date,
the workforce alignment has been implemented in a sccially responsible manner using voluntary early
retirement and redundancy arrangements

In addition, efficient project and process management will result in the systematic optimisation of
internal structures and hence in further cost cuts The reduction in business and loan volumes will
lead to a substantial decrease in net interest income and net fee and commissien income

The Bank will only be able to compensate for larger-than-expected dec!ines in 1ts existing business or
disproportionately large falls in net interest income to a hmited extent by making additional cost cuts

in terms of the Bank’s expected earnings performance, two scenarios are possible
m Provided that economic conditions on the Bank's target markets reman stable and no unplanned
reduction (n the loan portfolio occurs, the Managing Board expects, taking into account the Bank's

himited business opportunities, that the Bank will at least break even at an operating level in 2015,

= If the Bank is sold, its realignment may result in extraordinary effects and uncertainties regarding
its financial position and results of operations
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Due to the Bank’s imited business opporturitres and the ongoing sale process, the Managing Board
15 not publishing any additional quantitative targets for future portfolic and earnings developments

Westimmo has continually proved over the past few years that, despite the extremely difficult macro-
economic environment, 1t 1s a real estate bank with a healthy and successful core business Going
forward, Westimmo’s Managing Board will continue to implement all measures necessary to ensure
the Bank's ongoing existence and to continue to manage 1t effectively

4 (g,

nstiafe Ku ff Ramner Spielmann

Mainz, 24 February 2015
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Balance Sheet

Assets 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
€ € € TE
Cash reserve
a} Cash in-hand 3,368 44 ]
b} Centra! bank balances 32,923,485 47 74,855
of which
with Deutsche Bundesbank € 32,923,485 47
(previous year €74,854,802 85} 32,926,853 N 74,861
Recervables from banks
a} Municipal loans 410 681,588 03 172,154
b} Other receivables 583,725,778 23 823,943
of which
payable on demand €230,906 533 33
{previous year €215 178 348 39)
collaterahised by securities €390,014,576 38
{previgus year €550,041,833 33) 994,407,366 26 996,097
Recewables from customers
a) Mortgage loans 4,975,976 520 68 6,809,866
b} Municipal loans 979,352,884 88 1,093,880
¢} Other recesvables 1,581,791,909 07 2,804,327
of which
collateralised by securities €0 Q0
{previous year €0 00) 7,537,121,314 43 10,708 073
Bonds and other
fixed-income secunties
a) Bonds
aa} issued by pubhicissuers 473,875,171 86 767,461
of which
ehgible as collateral with Deutsche Bundesbank €473 875,171 86
{previous year €767,460,5%0 34)
ab) 1ssued by other issuers 782,095,926 07 869,291
of which 1,256,571 097 93 1,636,752
ehgible as collateral with Deutsche Bundesbank €782,695,926 07
(previous year €869,291,663 13}
b} Own bonds 268,765,585 34 272,961
par value € 270,900,000 00
(previous year €274,400 000 00) 1,525,336,683 27 1,909 713
Shares and other non-fixed-income securities 18,610,755 71 18 283
Other long term equity investments 166,773 98 3
Shares in affthated companies 5¢,003 88 537
Assets held in trust
of which
trustee loans €5,080,108 00
(previous year €7 265 243 13} 5,080,108 00 7,265
{ntangsble fixed assets
a) Purchased concessions, industrial and
similar rights and assets 123,229 56 509
Tangible fixed assets 1,123,679 94 1568
Other assets 6,449,904 21 36 948
Prepaid expenses
a) From i1ssuing business and loans 4,314 120 52 8,285
b} Other 10,058,866 06 14,637
14,372,986 58 22,922
Totat assets 10,135,76%9,659 93 13,776,907
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Balance Sheet

Equity and Liabihities 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2074 31 Dec 2013
€ € € T€

Liabilities to banks

al Registered mortgage Pfandbriefe 1ssued 96,451,002 25 111,990

b} Registered public-sector Plandbriefe 1ssued 65 530 506 85 110,859

c) Other habilsties
of which
payable on demand €332 666,79 96
(previous year €96,416,389 84)
Registered mortgage Plandbriefe € 0 00 {previous year €0 00) and
registered public-sector Pfandbriefe €0 00 (previous year €0 00}

1,359,389,622 96

1,266,867

pledged to lenders to collateralise loans 1,521,371,132 06 1,489,716
Liabihties to custamers
a) Registered mortgage Pfandbriefe 1ssued 3,592,753,557 24 3,903,712
b) Registered public-sector Pfandbriefe 1ssued 551,309,644 07 621,504
¢) Other habilities 2,164,523,563 69 3.136,721
of which
payable on demand € 247,796,992 38
{previous year €222,009,512 46)
Registered mortgage Pfandbriefe €0,00 {previous year €0 00) and
registered public sector Pfandbriefe €0 00 {previous year €0 00)
pledged to lenders to collateralise loans 6,308,586,765 C0 7,661,937
Sccuntised habifities
Bonds 1ssued
aa} Mortgage Pfandbriefe 629,764,427 23 1,345 490
ab) Public-sector Pfandbriefe 61,579,361 58 236,673
ac) Other bonds 840,017,786 32 1,855,052
1.531,361,575 13 3,437,222
Trustee labihties
of which
trustee loans €5 080 108 00 {previous year €7,265,243 13) 5,080,108 00 7,265
Other liabilities 105,304,186 52 60,223
Deferred income
a} From ssuing and lending 932,923 87
b} Other 2,737,184 57
3,670,108 44 17,062
Provisions
a} Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 28,500,000 00 24,883
b) Tax provisions 770,317 11 525
¢) Other provisions 40,625,467 67 38,847
69,895,784 78 64,255
Subordinated huwbihities 15,500,000 00 15,500
Fund for generdl banking risks 123,150,000 00 147,150
Equity
a} Subscribed capital 400,000,000 06 400,000
b} Capnal reserves 40,189 354 06 443,370
¢) Revenue reserves
ca) Reserves provided for by the articles of association 11,660,645 94 11,661
cb) Other revenue reserves 000 27,544
11,660,645 94
d) Net retatned profit 000 Q
451,850,000 00 876,577
Fotal equity and labilrties 10,135,769,659 93 13,776,907
Contingeni habihties
Contingent habihities from guarantees and indemnuty agreements 135,657,878 67 294,713
Cther commitments
Irrevocable loan commitments 16,745,271 42 9,739
Funds under management 000 20
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Income Statement

11-31122014 11-31122014 11-31122014 2013
€ € € € thousand
Interest income from
a) Lending and money market transactions 512,756,705 72 259,161
b} Fixed-income securities and book-entry securnities 18,259,800 00 38,463
531 016 505 72 597 624
Interest expenses 423,423,573 11 462,836
107,592,932 61 134,788
Current incomne from
a} Shares and ather non fixed-income securities 487,476 22 1,078
b} Gther investments 46,671 56 717
534,147 78 1,795
income from profit pooling profit transfer
or partiad profit transfer agreements 38,290 49 14,799
Fee and commussion income 7,776,343 25 13,312
Fee and commission expenses 6,416,085 18 7,820
1,360,258 07 5 492
QOther operating income
of which
Currency translation gains € 139 358 51
{previous year €529,907 38} 13,407,706 8O 13384
General administrative expenses
a) Personnel expenses
aa) Wages and salanes 25,838,932 41 27,457
ah) Social security, contnbution pensions and
other benefits 5,231,130 35 6,039
of which 31,070,062 76 33,496
pensions € 2,240,366 16
{previous year €2 857 616 78}
b} Other adrmunistrative expenses 23,099,489 04 30,513
54,169,551 80 64 009
Depreciation amorbisabion and write downs of
tangible and intangible fixed assets 938,323 85 1,429
Other operating expenses
of which
Currency translation losses €58 256 86
{previous year €673,460 37) 6,800,561 11 5,552
write-downs of and valuation allowances
an receivabies and certain secunties,
and addibions to toan lass provisions 14,991,108 71 0
income from write ups on receivables
and cerlain securities angd
release of lean loss provisions 000 66,734
Write-downs of and valuation allowances on other jong-term
equity mvestments, shares in afhihated comparies and
securities classified as fixed assets 000 8,601
tncome from reversals of write downs of end valuation allowances
on other long-term equity investments shares in affihated companies
and securnities classified as hixed assets 831,941 86 ]
Additien to Fund for general bankeng risk to § 340g HGB 000 100,000
Reversal 1o the fund for general banking risks in accordance
with sectwon 340g of the HGB 24,000,000 00 0
Result from ardinary activittas 70,865,732 14 57,401
Extraordinary expenses 7,000,000 00 8,153
Extraordinary result ~7,000,000 00 -8,153
Taxes on income 153,144 89 118
Other taxes not included in =370,6463 96 =-1,123
“Other operating expenses -217,519 07 ~1,005
Prefit transferred on the basis of profit pooling profiz transfer
or partial profit transfer agreements 64,083,251 21 50,253
Net profit for the financiat year 000 0
Reduction in assets attributable to carve out -448,727.270 62 [+]
Withdrawals from capital reserves 427,180,760 [+]
Withdrawals from other revenue reserves 21,544,510 61 0
Net retained profit 000 0
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 December 2014

1 General Inftor mation

11 Preparation of the annual financial statements

The annual financial statements of Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG {hereinafter referred to as
"Westlmmo”) as at 31 December 2014 were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Handels-
gesetzbuch {HGB - German Commercial Code) and the Verordnung uber die Rechnungslegung der
Kreditinstitute und Finanzdienstleistungsinstitute (RechKredV — German Bank Accounting Regulation},
the relevant provisians of the Aktiengesetz {AktG — German Stock Corporation Act) and the Pfand-
briefgesetz (PfandBG — German Pfandbrief Act) on a going concern basis We have supplemented the
balance sheet format prescribed far commercial banks by including those rtems required for banks

that operate as a Pfandbnef bank

The annual financial statements comprise the balance sheet, the income statement, the notes to the
financial statements, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes 1n equity In addition, a
management report was prepared in accordance with section 289 of the HGB The reporting currency

of the financial statements is the euro, and the reporting year 15 the calendar year

in accordance with sections 325 and 328 of the HGB, the annual financial statements are submitted to
and published by the operator of the electronic Bundesanzeiger {German Federal Gazette — www ebundes-

anzeiger de}

Westimmo I1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Erste Abwicklungsanstalt ACR, Dusseldorf {EAA) There
1s a profit and loss transfer agreement between Westimmo and EAA, and Westimmo 1s a member of

EAA’s consolidated tax group for corporation and trade tax purposes

12 Accounting policies

Assets, liabilities and executory contracts are measured 1n accordance with the measurement rules
set out In sections 252ff of the HGB, prowvided they are not codified n the special requirements for

banks in sections 340a ff of the HGB

Recewvables, habihties and pro rata interest

Receivables and habihities are offset in accordance with section 10 of the RechKredV

Receivables are carried at thewr principal amount in accordance with section 340e(2) of the HGB in the
case of receivables for which a premium applies to the principal amount, the difference 1s recognised

in prepard expenses and amortised over the term or fixed-interest period

Receivables for which a discount applies to the principal amount are carrnied at the lower of the amount
paid out or cost The discount s capitalised over the term or fixed-interest period, this 1s not reported

in deferred income

Liabihtres were recogmised at their settlement amount, with the corresponding discounts recognised

in prepard expenses

Pro rata interest is presented together with the underlying receivable or habihty
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Risk provisions

Sufficient risk provisions and other provisions were recogrused for all identifiable and potential risks
ansing from the lending business Risk provisions are recognised n the form of specific valuation
allowances, collective valuation allowances and general valuation allowances The Bank exercised the
cross-offsetting option It also has a fund for general banking risks 1in accordance with section 340g
of the HGB

Securities and derivatives

Securities classified as fixed assets (Investment portfolio) are measured using the less strict principle
of lower of cost or market value, securities in the hgquidity reserve were measured using the strict
principle of lower of cost or market value Listed bearer bonds are measured using {(quoted) market
prices Less hiquid securities, for which (quoted) market prices are not directly available, are measured
on the basis of observable market prices for comparable financial instruments

The differences between the cost and settlement amount of the securities in the investment portfolio
are recognised ratably in profit ar loss under net interest income

All structured products meet the requirements in IDW Accounting Principle RS HFA 22 with respect
to uniform accounting

Where available, (quoted) market prices are used in the measurement of derivative financial instruments
If (quoted) market prices do not exist or cannot be rehably determined, the fair values are determined on
the basis of standard market pricing models or discounted cash flows, taking into account the credit
standing of the individual counterparty Cash-collateralised derivatives are measured by discounting
the future cash flows for the material portfolios on the basis of Eonia swap curves (QIS discounting)

Hedge accounting
Please refer to the disclosures in chapter 2 4 for information on Westimmo's accounting policy

Affiliated companies and other long-term equity investments
Shares in affiliated companies and other long-term equity investments are carried at cost less any write-
downs Write-downs to the lower fair value are recogmised if impairment is expected to be permanent

Tangible and intangtble fixed assets

Tangible and intangible fixed assets with finite useful lives were depreciated or amortised in accerdance
with the provisions of tax law Low-value assets were accounted for 1n accordance with the provisions
of tax law Westlmmo exercises the option to deduct low-value assets as business expenses (f their
cost s greater than €150 00 and less than €410 00 The cost of assets that can be used independently
1s recognised in full as an operating expense n the year of acquisition, production, or contribution If
1t does not exceed €150 00, net of any wnput tax

Prepaid expenses and deferred immcome

Premums/discounts applied to receivables or labihties are recognised in accordance with the accounting
for underlying receivables or hiabtltties Please refer to the disclosures on the corresponding balance
sheet items in the following chapters for information on the accounting policy apphed

Notes
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Other provisions and provisions for pensions

In accordance with section 253{1} sentence 2 of the HGB, provisions must be recognised at the settle-
ment amount dictated by prudent business judgement Future cost and price increases are taken into
account when calculating the settlement amounts All provisions with a term of more than one year
are discounted Provisions for uncertain habilities and losses from executory contracts are recogmised
at the expected settlement amount dictated by prudent business judgement and discounted where
necessary

Westimmo uses the projected unit credit method (PUCM} for penston and jubilee provisions

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes have been accounted for using the balance sheet hiabihty method since 2010 Under
this approach, the carrying amounts of assets, habilities, 1items of prepaid expenses and deferred
income under German GAAP are compared with their tax base If the carrying amount of an asset s
higher than its tax value, or the carrying amount of a hability 1s lower than its tax value and these
differences are expecied to reverse in future years, deferred tax habihties are recognmised In the
opposite case, deferred tax assets are recognised

Deferred taxes are measured in accordance with section 274(2) sentence 1 of the HGB The resuiting
tax assets and habihties are measured at the individual tax rates for the company that wiil apply when
the differences reverse The tax rates apphcable to the taxable entity must be used Deferred taxes
were calculated using the corporation tax rate of 15 0%, the solidarity surcharge of 5 5% and the
effective trade tax rate of 154 %

In accordance with section 274(2) sentence 1 of the HGB, deferred tax assets and habilities calculated
in this way are not discounted, regardless of when they reverse

in accordance with the provisions of section 274(1} sentence 1 of the HGB, a deferred tax habihty 1s
recognised on any aggregate tax habihty resulting frem differences between the carrying amounts
under German GAAP of assets, habihities, and items of prepatd expenses and deferred income Section
274(1) sentence 2 of the HGB provides for an option to recogruse a deferred tax asset on any aggregate
tax asset Westlmmo does not exercise this option and does not recognise deferred tax assets

In accordance with section 274(2) sentence 3 of the HGB, the expense or income from changes in
recogrised deferred taxes must be presented separately under “taxes on income” In principle, such
separate presentation can take the form of an “of which” item Since Westimmo does not exercise the
option to recognise deferred tax assets, these are not presented n the income statement There are
no deferred tax habilities

With respect to deferred taxes, section 285 no 29 of the HGB requires the differences or tax loss
carryforwards to which the deferred taxes relate and the tax rates used for measurement to be disctosed
inthe notes All differences to which the deferred taxes relate must be disclosed, regardless of whether
the recogmition option has been exercised or not
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As a matter of principle, deferred taxes can be recognised at the level of the tax group parent (EAA)
due to the existing income tax group between Westlmmo and EAA {(principle of form over substance)
Since the principle of substance over form has been adopted to date and the deferred tax assets at the
level of the consohdated tax group subsidiary were explained in the notes, this was also appled at
Westimmo in 2014 in line with the principle of origination-based allocation

The disclosures in the notes in accordance with section 285 no 29 of the HGB are taken into consid-
eration, with the necessary modifications The deferred tax assets are primarily attnibutable to the
following balance sheet items

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Mio € Mio €

Receivables from customers oc 00
Long-term financia! assets 21 33
Pension provisions 34 32
Other provisions 19 05
~ of which provisions for expected losses 09 00
Total 74 70

In 2014, all €7 4 milhon {previous year €5 3 mullion) of the deferred tax assets were attributable to
Westimmo, as Westdeutsche ImmobilienHolding (WIH), WestGkA Management Gesellschaft fur
kommunale Anlagen mbH (WestGkA) and other substdiaries were transferred to EAA by way of a carve-
out with effect from 1 January 2014

Currency translation

Currency translation i1s performed in accordance with section 256a of the HGB in conjunction with
section 340h of the HGB and IDW Accounting Principle RS BFA 4 Westimmo accounts for exchange
rate risks as specially hedged transactions under section 340h of the HGB Exchange rate risk 1s
calculated and managed indvidually for each foreign currency using an aggregate foreign cusrency
position account Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and open fareign currency
cash contracts are translated at the current closing rate (ECB middle spot rate)

Changes in value resulting from the subsequent measurement of foreign currency items are presented
by currency on a net basis under either “other operating income” or "other operating expenses”

Measurement at net realisable value

Interest rate risk management at Westimmo 1s based on the concept of managing market risk at Bank
level Westlmmo manages general interest rate risk in the banking book centrally as part of its asset/
hability management According to prevailing opinion, this 1s a measurement approach under which
all derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in the banking book are economically related
(refinancing relationship), rather than a hedge within the meaning of section 254 of the HGB West-
Immao has identified a surplus in accordance with IDW RS BFA 3 in measuning the net realisable value
of interest rate risk in the banking book by comparing the fair values (based on the present values)
of financial instruments with their carrying amounts It must be assessed whether the total future
obligations are matched by an offsetting claim in an appropriate amount If the measurement of the
overall interest rate position in the banking book were to result in an onerous contract, the principle
of prudence under German commercial law would have to be observed and a provision recogmsed in
accordance with section 249(1) sentence 1 of the HGB (provision for expected losses) Such a provision
was not necessary as at 31 December 2014

Notes
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13 Carve-oul transaction

The assets, habilities, derivatives and contingent habilities that were inconsistent with the strategy of
a Pfandbrief bank were transferred at their carrying amounts to EAA KG, which 1s held by EAA, by
way of a carve-out in accordance with the Umwandlungsgesetz (UmwG — German Reorganisation Act)
with retroactive effect from 1 January 2014 under the carve-out and merger agreement dated 11/12
June 2014

Assets decreased as a result of the transaction, reducing equity by €448,727,270 62

The decrease In assets as a result of the carve-out relates to the following balance sheet items

Carrying amounts at 31 12 2013

n €
Assets
Cash reserve 6,048,969 71
Recewvables from banks 1,935,630 35

Recewables from customers

380,798,974 37

Bonds and other fixed-income securities

322,307,276 94

Other assets

6,273 94

Shares 1n affilated companies

100

Total assets

711,097,126 31

Equity and Liabiinties

Liabileties to banks

-$,413,534 15

Liabilities to customers

—-103,705 499 62

Securitised habihities

-152,250,821 92

Total equity and habilities

~-262,369,855 69

Reduction in assets attributable to carve-out 448,727,270 62

Contingent habilities decreased by €71 6 million as a result of the carve-out transaction

The above-mentioned portfolio, iIncluding all related agreements and legal relationships, was actually
transferred to EAA KG by various methods In addition to the carve-out, sub-portfolios were transferred
by way of a sub-participation, a bond purchase agreement and, with regard to certain derivatives, by way
of a master back-to-back agreement In particular, this addressed legal, regulatory and tax obstacles
to the transfer

In the case of the carve-out method of transfer, assets and habilities were transferred to EAA KGin
rem and constructively Under the method of transfer comprising the sub-participation and the master
back-to-back agreement, the transfer was merely synthetic, meaning that the risks and rewards
associated with these portfolios were transferred In the case of the sub-participation, the transfer of
the nsks and rewards associated with the assets resulted in their derecogmition The derivatives were
initially transferred synthetically As they have now been novated, they too have been derecognised

At Westimmo's Extraordinary General Meeting on 12 June 2014, the sharehoclders approved the
implementation of the carve-out transaction on the basis of the above-mentioned agreements
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2 Balance Sheet Disclosures
2 1 Recervables from banks

Recewvables from other banks are broken down as follows

2014 2013
€ million € milhen
Payable on demand 2309 2152
With a remaining term of
— up 1o 3 menths 6208 6452
- more than 3 manths and up 1o 1 year 655 446
—more than 1 and up to 5 years 762 911
- more than 5 years 00 00
Total 994 4 9961
of which
from affilated companies 00 oo
from other Investees 00 00

In addition, receivables totalling €91 0 millien {previous year €135 6 millign) were used to cover bonds
1ssued, of which €70 0 million (previous year €70 0 million) related to mortgage Pfandbriefe and €21 0
mithon (previcus year €65 6 million) to public-sector Pfandbriefe

2 2 Recewvables from customers

Recewvables from customers are compaosed of the following 1tems

2014 2013
€ mihon € million
Indefinite term 137 2 2238
With a remaining term of
- up to 3 months 473 4 346 3
— mare than 3 months and up to 1 year 3953 1,858 4
—more than 1 and up to 5 years 33,4723 50710
- more than 5 years 24589 3,2086
Total 75371 10,708 1
of which
from affihated companies 481 563
from other investees 50 1921

Receivables from customers declined to €7,537 1 milhon (previous year €10,708 1 mullion) due to the
reduction in the portfolios, the lack of new business and the carve-out transaction (see chapter 1 3}

The receivables from customers item includes subordinated loans and advances in the amount of €0 2
mullion {previous year €0 6 million) resulting from declarations of subordination

In addition, receivables totalling €5,435 0 million {previous year €7,227 6 million} were used to cover
bonds issued, of which €4,688 4 million (previous year €6,396 5 million} related to mortgage Pfang-
briefe and €746 6 million {previous year €831 1 million} to public-secter Pfandbriefe

Notes
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2 3 Bonds and other fixed-income securities

The “bands and other fixed-income securities” item 1s broken down as follows

2014 2013

€ million € mullion

Bonds 1,5253 1,%09 7
Marketability

- Listed 1,525 3 1,909 7

- Unlisted a0 00

Due In the following year 7423 467 0

Subordinated securities 00 00

Used as cover {principal amount) 4205 574 4

The “bonds and other fixed-income securities” item 1s divided into the following measurement categories,
based on the instruments’ purpose

2014 2013

€ miflion € mullion

Liguidity reserve 694 9 1,162 7
Investment portfolic 8304 747 0
Total 152532 1,909 7

Bonds and other fixed-income securities declined to €1,525 3 million {previous year €1,909 7 milhion),
primarily as a result of the carve-out transaction (see chapter 1 3)

The investment portfolio, which amounted to €830 4 mutlion {(previous year €747 0 mithon) and s
reported under long-term financial assets, 1s measured in accordance with section 253(3) of the HGB
in conjunction with section 340e(1) sentence 2 of the HGB

As in the previous year, there were no reclassifications from the Liquidity reserve to the investment
portfolio and vice versa in financial year 2014

The securtties classified as long-term financial assets had a fair value of €839 2 nullion (previous year
€756 5 milhon) and a carrying amount of €825 2 milhon {previous year €736 6 million)

The option to write down the securities by €0 2 milhon {previcus year €0 3 million) to their fair value
was not exercised as they were not permanently impaired The impairments are not considered to be
permanent since 1t 1s assumed that the secunities will be repatd at their principal amount at matunity
Both hidden liabilities and htdden reserves are disclosed, with the latter amounting to €14 2 millton
(previous year €20 2 million)

As in the previous year, the Bank had no securities issued by affiliated compames in 1ts portfolio as at
the reporting date
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Securities in the hquidity reserve were written down to their lower fair value by €0 7 milhon (previous
year €0 2 miliion), as in the previous year, no write-downs were recognised on securities in the invest-
ment portfolio

Please refer to the disclosures in the management report for further information on bonds from GIIPS
countries

2 4 Hedge accounting disclosures

Hedges within the meaning of section 254 of the HGB are individual assets that were acquired in the
form of swaps and that were designated as economic hedging relationships to fully hedge interest rate
risk

Westlmmo had no hedges in its portfoho as at the reporting date

In the previous year, Westimmo had designated fixed-income bonds with a carrying amount of €307 0
mitlion including pro rata interest in 1ts investment portfolio and bonds with a carrying amount of
€272 4 milhion inciuding pro rata interest in its hgquidity portfohio together with interest rate swaps as
micro hedges In that year, the interest rate risk hedged by way of the hedges (quantified using the
aggregate present value of the hedging derivatives) amounted to €-104 5 million

2 5 Securities repurchase agreements

The assets sold under sale and repurchase agreements had a carrying amount of €102 0 milhon as at
31 December 2014 (previous year €50 0 million} The pro rata interest amounted to €0 05 million
{previous year €0 0 miihon)

2 6 Securitics lending

Asin the previous year, the Bank had no securities lending transactions n its portfolio as at the balance
sheet date

2 7 Shares and other non-fixed-income scecurities

This item relates almost exclusively to unlisted fund units in the amount of €18 & mithon {previous
year €18 3 million} The carrying amounts of the fund units correspond to the net assets and hence to
their value 1n accordance with sections 168 and 278 of the Kapitalanlagegesetzbuch (KAGE — German
Investment Code} A dividend of €0 5 milion was paid 1n financial year 2014 for financial year 2013
(previcus year €11 million}

The fund units can be redeemed after a minimum holding period of three years and subject to a notice

period of two years Naotice of termination for the fund units effective 31 December 2015 was submitted
ingood time Redemptions per year are hmited to a maximum of 10 % of the net assets for all investors
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2 8 Long-teim equity investments and shaies in affillated compantes (list of shareholdings)

Breakdown of companies in accordance with section 285 no 11 of the HGB and section 340atd) no 2 of

the HGB in the version dated 31 December 2014

No Name/dormicile Equity interest Equity in  Profitiloss in
n%  €thousands € thousands
I Affihated companies
1 Fischerinsel Beteihgungs-GmbH (L, Mainz "3 100 00 13 -3
2 Fischerinsel Vermietungs-GmbH & Co KG L, Mamnz 3 100 00 s ~2,305
3 Projektentwicklungsgesellschaft
Gartenstadt Witdau Rothegrund [ mbH Wildau® 94 00 =-4,261 =7
4 Projektgesellschaft Klosterberg mbH Munster® 94 00 =567 -19
5 West Zwanzig GmbH, Mainz¥ 100 00 25 0
-] WIP Westdeutsche Immobslien Portfolio Management GmbH Dusseldorf2 100 00 627 =5
fl Beteiigungen
7 EMG Projekt Gewerbepark Ludwigsfelde/Lowenbruch GmbH, Berlin® 47 50 515 =119
8 Frankoma Eurcbau Max-Viertel GmbH, Nettetal? 2500 -38,71 ~2883
GI1D Gesellschaft fur Innenstadtentwicklung i Duisburg mbH, Hamburg? 4500 -3 o]
10 GML Gewerbepark Munster-Loddenheide GmbH, Munster® 3333 11,549 14698

Bin igugdation

2 Preltmanary financial statements as at 31 October 2013

¥ Data only avaifable as at 31 October 2012 vor

4 Affilrated with Westdeutsche Immobilienbank AG via EAV

There are no cross-holdings within the meaning of section 160{1) no 7 of the AktG

The following companies were disposed of in 2014

® BfP Beteihgungsgeselischaft fur Projekte mbH, Dusseldorf”

®m GkA Gesellschaft fur kommunale Anlagen mbH, Dusseldorf”

® LIFE VALUE Canstruction GmbH, Dusseldorf”

® LIFE VALUE GmbH & Co 11/14 Centre KG, Dusseldorf*

u LIFE VALUE Properties GmbH, Dusseldorf*

a Montelucia Phoenix Inc, Dover, USA

8 PM Portfolio Management GmbH, Dusseldorf®

® Projekt Carree am Bahnhof GmbH & Co Burozentrum KG, Bad Homburg’
a Projekt Carree am Bahnhof Verwaltungs-GmbH, Bad Homburg®

a Westdeutsche ImmobihenHolding GmbH, Mainz®

® WestGkA Management Gesellschaft fur kommunale Anlagen mbH, Dusseldorf”

® WestProject & Consult Gesellschaft fur Projektentwicklung und Consulting mbH 1 L, Dusseldorf®

® WMO Entwicklungsgesetischaft mbH, Bonn
® Grundstucksentwicklungsgeselischaft Krohnstieg-Sud mbH, Bremen

*The disposal was i connection with the carve-out transaction (see chapter 1 3}

All of these companies are not ehgible for listing and unlisted
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2 9 Assets held 1n trust
The "assets held in trust” item comprises trustee loans to customers in the amount of €57 million
{previous year €7 3 million)
2 10 Tixed assels
The changes in fixed assets are presented in the statement of changes in fixed assets below The
figures quoted for bonds and other fixed-income securities do not inctude pro rata interest Alongside
additions and disposals, the changes in the year under review include portfohio changes resulting from
the ratable amortisation of premiums and discounts
€ million Cost as at  Additions Disposals  Disposals Reclassi- Depreciation, Reversals of Cumulative Carrying Carrying
1 Jan 2014 during during attribut- fications amortisation write-downs depreciation, amountat  amount at
fiscal year fiscal year able to and write- during amortisation 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
carve-out downs during  fiscal year and write-
fiscal year downs as at
371 Dec 2014
Long-term financial assets
Bends and other
fixed-income securities
classified as fixed assets 7366 408 7 42 3159 00 00 00 00 8252 736 6
Shares and other
non-fixed-income
securities 250 oo 00 00 00 oo 03 64 186 183
Shares in
affihated 698 oo 05 414 00 oo 00 78 01 05
companies
Other long-term
egquity invest- 14 01 00 o0 00 oo 040 13 02 01
ments
Subtotal 8328 408 8 47 3773 00 ¢0 03 155 8441 7555
Fixed assets
Intangrble fixed assets 287 00 16 00 00 04 090 279 01 05
Office and
operatng
equipment 139 01 23 g0 0o 05 00 106 11 14
Subtotal 42 6 01 39 00 00 09 00 376 12 21
Total 875 4 408 9 86 3773 00 R 03 531 845 3 757 6

2 11 Othe1 assets

The change in other assets to €6 4 million {previous year €36 9 milhon) was due in particular to the
settlement of receivables relating to the profit transfer by subsidiaries in the amount of €14 8 million
and the successful sale of a rescue acquisition with a carrying amountof €12 8 million

Other assets primarily comprise receivables of €2 5 million (previous year €29 milhon) from the
measurement of executory currency spot and currency forward transactions, trade receivables of
€21 milion (previgus year €19 milhion) and receivables from pro rata interest on derivatives of
€0 7 million (previous year €1 5 million)
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212 Piepaid expenses

This item comprises the following

2014 2013
€ million € milhon
Upfront payments on swaps 98 145
Discount fram lLiabilities 30 55
Discount from 1ssuance 12 26
Premwum from receivables 01 02
Other 03 01
Total 144 229
2 13 Liabthues to banks
Liabihties to other banks are broken down into the following maturities
2014 2013
€ million € milhon
Payable on demand 3327 96 4
With a remaining term of
- up to 3 months 455 139 3
— more than 3 months and up to 1 year 7160 732
—more than 1 and up 1o 5 years 304 1 1,034 8
— more than 5 years 1231 146 ¢
Total 15214 1,489 7
of which
to affiliated companies 00 02
from other investees 00 oc¢
2 14 lLiabihities to custemers
Liabilities to customers are composed of the following
2014 2013
€ milhon € milhon
Payable en demand 247 8 2220
With a remaining term of
- up to 3 months 366 & 1,107 1
— more than 3 months and up to 7 year 923 4 7163
— more than 1 and up to 5 years 24271 2,632 4
— more than 5 years 2,343 5 29841
Total 6,308 6 7661%
of which
to affibated companies 658 3 9110
from other investees oo 00
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2 15 Securitised habulities

The sharp decrease in securitised habilhities to €1,531 4 million {previous year €3,437 2 milhion) 1s
related to the Bank’s business development and the associated reduction in its refinancing requirements
In the context of the carve-out transaction (see chapter 1 3}, securitised habilities decreasedby €152 3
milhion

Of the securitised habilities, 1ssues with a nominal volume of € 650 @ mullion {previous year €1,792 5
milhon) and pro rata interest in the amount of €3 5 million (previous year €11 7 mullion) are due in
the following year

This item includes securitised habilities to affiliated companies (EAA) witha carrying amount of €324 9
million {previous year €4777 million)

216 Trustee liabilhines

Trustee llabilities to customers amounted to €5 1 milhon {previous year €7 3 million}

2 17 Other labilities

The “other habilities” item (€105 3 mullion, previous year €460 2 million} maly comprises liabilities
to the parent company (EAA) from the profitand loss transfer agreement{€ 64 1 million, previous year
€50 3 millhon), currency translation adjustments (€35 2 milhon, previousyear €1 0 million), habilities
arising from the measurement of executory currency spot/forward transactions {€2 0 million, previous
year €2 3 milhon} and pro rata interest from denvatives (€0 8 million, previous year €17 million)

2 18 Detened income

This item comprises the following

2014 2013

€ mthon € milhon

Upfront payments on swaps 23 14 6
Prepaid interest 05 14
Premum from 1ssuance and lending 09 11
Total 37 171
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2 19 Provisions

Provisions can be broken down as follows

Balance at  Utdisation Reversals Additions Interest Interest Balance at
€ million 1Jan 2014 expense income 31 Dec 2014
Pension provisions 249 03 00 04 33 00 285
Employee expenses 282 70 05 106 07 =07 33
Provisions for deposit
protection funds 37 37 00 g 00 00 09
Tax prowisions. 05 05 00 08 00 00 08
Loan loss provisiens 16 G5 11 30 00 00 30
Qther provisions 54 28 14 51 00 00 63
Carrying amount tn
balance sheet 643 148 30 201 40 -07 699

Pension and jubilee provisions were calculated on the basis of an actuanial report prepared using the
projected umit credit method, and in accerdance with the 2005G mortality tables published by Prof
Dr Klaus Heubeck

The figures in the actuanial report are calculated on the basis of the following assumptions

31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013
Turnover 3 00% 3q0%
Disceunt rate 453% 491%
Rate of increase in elhigible remuneration 250% 250%
Income threshold for contrbution assessment
under the statutory pension insurance system €72 600 00 €71,400 00
Rate of tncrease in the income threshold for contribution assessment
under the statutory pension insurance system 250% 250%
Adjustment 1o current pensions 2 00% 200%

Provisions with a remaming term of more than one year are discounted at the interest rate corresponding
to their remaiming term IR contrast, provisions for post-employment obligations are discounted on a
flat rate basis at the average market interest rate pubhshed by Deutsche Bundesbank and resulting
from an assumed remaining term of 15 years, in accordance with section 253(2) sentence 2 of the HGB

Income and expenses from the discounting/unwinding of discounts on loan loss provisions are presented
gross 1n the “net interest income/expense” item or under other provisions in the “other operating
income/expenses” item In the year under review, Westimmo recorded expenses of €3 3 million from
the unwinding of discounts on pension provisions, an expense of €0 7 milion from the unwinding of
discounts on restructuring provisions and income of €0 7 million from discounting additions to
restructuring provisions There were no expenses or income from discounting/unwinding the discount
on foan loss provisions

Restructuring provisions for personnel and vacancy costs amounted to €27 0 million {previous year
£24 0 milhen)
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Cther provisions also include provisions of €11 nulhion for subsequent costs at Montelucia Phoenix Inc,
which was disposed of in the year under review, provisions of €1 0 million {previous year €1 0 million}
for archiving costs and provisions of €0 8 million (previous year €1 3 milhaon) for [itigation risks

2 20 Subordinated habihues

The agreements regarding loans subject to a subordination agreement (norminal volume of €15 5
million, previous year nominal volume of €15 5 million) satisfy the conditions set out in Article 63 1n
conjunction with Articles 77 and 78 of the CRR and are recogmsed accordingly as Tier 2 capital in
accordance with Article 62 of the CRR In the event of bankruptcy or hquidation, subordinated habilities
will not be repaid until all non-subordinated creditors have been satisfied

Borrowings that exceed 10 % of the total subordinated debt are presented below

Currency Nominal amount Interest rate Maturity Callable
in € milhon in%pa
€ 155 a5 2020 no

2 21 Fund for general banking risks

The fund for general banking risks in accordance with section 340g of the HGB amounts to €123 2
milhion (previous year €147 2 million) In 2014, an amount of €24 0 million was reversed

2 22 Fguny

A total of €448 7 million was withdrawn from the capital reserves and the other revenue reserves to
cover the decrease in assets resulting from the carve-out transaction

Westlmmo received an additional payment of €24 0 mulhion from EAA to strengthen 1ts equity, this
was transferred to the capital reserves in accordance with section 272{2) no 4 of the HGB

Subscribed capital

The subscribed capital of Westimmo as at 31 December 2014 amounted to €400 0 millton (previous
year €400 0 milbom) and s divided into four million no-par value registered shares The nouionalinterest
in the share capitalis € 100 00 per no-par value share All shares carry thesame voting nghts EAA holds
100 G % of the shares

Notes
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Capital reserves

The capital reserves amounted to €40 2 million (previous year €443 4 million)

Revenue reserves

The revenue reserves provided for by the articles of association were unchanged n the reporting
period, at €11 7 milhon Otherrevenue reserves amounted 1o €0 O million (previous year €21 5 million}

Statement of changes in equity

Balance at Additions Withdrawals Appropriation of Balance at
€ million 1Jan 2014 net proht/distribution 31 Dec 2014
Subscribed capital 400 0 00 00 00 4000
Capital reserves 443 4 240 -427 2 00 40 2
Revenue reserves
- Reserves provided for by the
articles of association 117 ALY 00 00 17
- Other revenue reserves 215 a0 -215 040 00
Net retained profits 0o G0 Q0 Q0 [*}!]
Equity under German GAAP 876 6 240 ~448 7 04 4519
2 23 Forewgn currency items
2014 2013
€ mullion € million
Foreign currency assets 15800 2,432 3
Foreign currency hiabilities 15800 2,432 3
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3 Income Statement Disclosures
31 Breakdown of income by geographical arca

According to the geographical breakdown, Germany accounts for €531 8 million {previous year €586 8
milhien) and the UK for €21 0 milhon (previous year €54 1 million} of the total income from interest
income, current income from shares and other non-fixed-income secunities, long-term equity invest-
ments, fee and commission income and other operating income (€552 8 million, previous year €640 9
million)

Netinterest income (€ 107 6 million, previous year € 134 8 mullion) includes income from the close-out
of derivatives used to hedge interest rate risk in the net amount of €175 miullien (previous year net
expenses of €5 0 million), as well as net income from early repayment penalties of €5 6 million (previous
year €13 9 million} and interest expenses from the early repayment of borrower’s note loans of €22 3
million (previous year €14 6 million)

3 2 Other operating tncome

This item primarily comprises service income from service level agreements (€4 0 milhon, previous
year €16 million} income from rescue acquisitions (€3 0 million, previous year €1 8 million) and
income from the reversal of provisions (€19 million, previous year €6 4 million)

3 3 Other operating expenses

This item includes discount unwinding expenses for provisions of €4 0 million (previous year €3 2
million} and rescue acquisition expenses of €1 6 million {previcus year €1 3 milhon}

3 4 Risk provisions

In the year under review, total expenses of €15 0 mithion were incurred for write-downs of and valuation
allowances on receivables and certain securities as well as additions to ican loss provisions In the
previous year, iIncome from the reversal of write-downs of receivables and certain securities as well
as from the reversal of lcan loss provisions amounted to €466 7 millwon

In the year under review, reversals of write-downs of long-term equity investments, shares in affiliated
companies and long-term securities amounted to €0 8 millien 1in the previous year, a total of €8 6
milhon was expended on write-downs of and valuation allowances on long-term equity tnvestments,
shares in affihated compames and long-term securities

3 5 Extraordihaly eapenses

€7 0 millon (previous year €8 2 million) was added to the restructuring provisions for personnel and
vacancy costs recognised in 2011

Notes
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3 6 Profit and loss transfer agreements

Profits of €0 04 million {previous year € 14 8 million) were transferred under profit and loss transfer
agreements n the year under review The high levet of income in the previous year was due primarily
to a non-recurning facter recorded by the subsichary West Zwanzig GmbH relating to the successful
repayment of a loan receivable and hquidation of real estate collateral for which a valuation allowance
had been recogmsed

The profit of €64 1 million {previous year €50 3 million) will be transferred in accordance with the
profit and loss transfer agreement with the shareholder, EAA

3 7 Administiation and brokerage services performed for third parties

In the year under review, other operating income of €1 3 milhion {previous year €1 6 miilion} was
generated in connection with a service level agreement entered inte with Portigon, which relates to
the servicing of the risk assets transferred by Westimmo to EAA 1n 2010

For the first time, other operating income (€2 7 million) was also generated in connection with a service
level agreement entered into with EAA, which relates to the servicing of the risk assets transferred by
Westimmo to EAA n 2014 as part of the carve-out transaction
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4 Other Disclosures
4 1 Oft-balance-sheet ttansactions

With the exception of the derivatives entered into for hedging purposes presented in section 4 8, the
Bank did not conduct any transactions that must be disclosed in accordance with section 285 no 3 of
the HGB

4 2 Contingencies and comimitments

Contingencies and commitments are potential future liabilities and obligations of the Bank resulting
from the lending business and from limited-term lines of credit extended to cur customers but not yet
drawn down

Contingent habilities 1n the amount of € 135 7 million (previous year €294 7 million} are attributable
to contingent liabihties from guarantees and indemnity agreements The remaiming commitments
{€16 7 million, previous year €97 million} relate in their entirety to irrevocable loan commitments

Appropriate provisions have been recognised to take account of contingent liabilities in connection
with risks related to the lending business

4 3 Other inanaial obligations

Westlmmo has annual rental and leasing obligations in the amount of €7 7 millicn (previcus year €75
millien) and annual obligations under service agreements in the amountof €6 1 million {previous year
€6 0 million}

Westlmmo 1s affliated with the Guarantee Fund of the Central Savings Banks/Central Gire Institutions
in the Deutscher Sparkassen- und Giroverband {DSGV - German Savings Bank Association) The Bank
had an additional funding obhgation of €0 07 million {previous year €7 2 mullion} as at the balance
sheet date

4 4 Collateral transfeired for own liabilities

On 31 December 2014, secunities with a carrying amount of €276 0 mithon {previous year €243 7
milhion) had been deposited and loan receivables in the amount of €139 3 million {previous year €156 é
million} had been assigned as security for participating 1n open market transactions with Deutsche
Bundesbank Open market transactions amounted to €0 0 million as at the reporting date (previous
year €0 0 million)

Securities with a carrying amount of € 106 9 million {previous year €208 9 mullion) were deposited n
the financial year as secunty for participating in clearing systems and stock exchange facilities In
addition, loan recevables with a carrying amount of €219 9 miilion (previous year €222 4 milhon)
and securities with a carrying amount of €4 9 milhon {previcus year €0 0 million) were deposited
with banks as secunity

Asin the previous year, no cash collateral was furmished for genuine securities repurchase agreements
In the year under review
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4 5 Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are conducted exclusively on an arm'’s length basis

4 6 German Corporate Governance Code

Westimmao has voluntarily adopted the recommendations and suggestions of the German Corporate
Governance Code (the Code} The declaration in accordance with section 161 of the Aktiengesetz
AktG - German Stock Cerporation Act), as amended, 1s permanently available at www westimmo com

4 7 Cover for mortgages and municipal loans

Publication according to section 28 para 1 nos.1 and 3 Pfandbrief Act

Qutstanding total

nominal value

net present value

risk-adjusted
net present value

€ milhon Q4 2014 Q4 2013 Q4 2014 Q42013 Q42014 Q4 2013
Mortgage Pfandbriefe 4,2400 52670 5,004 2 59313 51403 6,185 4
of which denivatives - - - - - -
Cover pool 5,123 9 65,9450 5,544 0 73929 55223 7,367 5
of which derivatives - - - - - -
QOver Celateralization (0C) 883 9 1.6780 5398 1461 6 3820 1,1821
0OC in % of Pfandbriefe outstanding 2085 31856 1079 24 64 7 43 1911
Over-Collaterahization in Consideration of

vdp-Credit-Quality-Differentiation-Madel 8839 - 5398 -

OC in % of Pfandbriefe outstanding 20 85 - 1079 -

Outstanding total

nominal value

net present value

risk-adjusted
net present value

€ million Q4 2014 Q4 2013 Q4 2014 Q4 2013 Q4 2014 Q4 2013
Public Pfandbriefe 666 3 956 1 7707 1,046 7 740 2 1,000
of which derivatives - - - - -
Cover pool B22 6 1,047 & 9885 1,2015 938 2 1,136 8
of which denivatives - - - - - -
Over Collateratization {OC) 563 915 2178 154 8 198 0 126 8
QC in % of Pfandbriefe outstanding 23 46 957 28 26 1479 2675 1255
Over-Collateralization 1n Consideration of

vdp-Credit-Quality-Differentiation-Model 156 3 - 217 8 -

0C in % of Pfandbriefe outstanding 2346 - 28 26 -

The dynamic approach was used for calculauing the risk-adjusted net present value according to section 5 para 1 no 1 of the

Net Present Value Regulation (PfandBarwertV}

Note The over collateralization with a view to the vdp-credit quahity differentiaton model is calculated starting 1n the secand
quarter 2074 The release of these data 15 voluntary
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Publication according to section 28 para 1 no 2 Pfandbrief Act

Maturity structure of Pfandbriefe outstanding and their respective cover pools

Notes

Mortgage Pfandbriefe Q42014 Q42013

Pfandbriefe Cover poof Pfandbniefe Cover pool
€ mullien outstanding outstanding
Maturity
<=05years 995 8334 - -
> {5 years and <=1 year 3383 850 5 - -
<=1 year - - 8110 1,965 9
> 1 yearand <=15 years 483 2 3302 - -
> 15 years and <=2 years 2590 5179 - -
>1 year and < = 2 years - - 4363 1,653 2
> 2 years and < = 3 years 8205 686 1 9328 764 3
> 3 years and < = 4 years 447 8 6157 8290 865 6
>4 years and < =5 years 501 9 4547 458 5 6355
> 5 years and < = 10 years 737 6757 12592 8616
= 10 years 5161 1597 540 2 198 9
Public Pfandbriefe Q42014 Q42013

Pfandbrefe Cover poot ffandbriefe Cover pool
€ mithon outstanding outstandmg
Maturity
<=005 years 48 0 1297 - -
> 05 years and < = 1 year 200 576 - -
<=1 year = - 2706 1887
> 1 year and <=1,5 years 1355 261 - -
> 15 years and < = 2 years 155 417 - -
>1 year and <=2 years - - 1380 1851
> 2 years and < =3 years 708 1015 170 8 66 6
> 3 years and < =4 years 106 903 708 904
> 4 years and < =5 years 305 795 100 69 2
> 5 years and < = 10 years 173 & 140 2 1909 2401
> 10 years 925 1560 1050 207 5

Note From second quarter 2014 the matunity buckets up to 2 years have been rearranged 5o far there are no adequate data for

the previous periods available

Publication according to section 28 para.2 no 1a Pfandbrief Act
and section 28 para 4 no 1a Pfandbrief Act

Mortgage loans used as cover for Mortgage Pfandbriefe according to their amount in tranches

Cover assets Q4 2014 Q4 2013

€ milkion € mulhien
up to €300 thousand 14242 1,770 7
more than € 300 thousand up 10 €1 million 1167 -
more than €1 milhion up to €70 milhon 925 4 -
more than €10 millhon 2,657 & -
more than €300 thousand up to €5 million - 6205
more than €5 million - 4,005 3
Total 5123 % 6,396 5

Note From second quarter 2014 the buckets for the cover loans for Mortgage Pfandbriefe larger than 300 000 € have been

regrouped So far there are no adequate data for the previous periods available
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Publicatron according to section 28 para 2 no 1b, ¢ and no,2 Pfandbrief Act

Volume of claims used to cover Mortgage Pfandbriefe according to states in which the real property i1s located,
according to property type and the total amount of payments in arrears for at least 90 days as well as the total
amount of these claims inasmuch as the respective amount in arrears 1s at least 5 percent of the claim

Cover assets

Total thereof
Residential
Total thereof
Apartments Single- and Multi-family Buildings Building
two-family houses under land
houses construction
State Q4 € millhien € milhen € million € milhon € mullson € milhion € million
Total - all states 2014 4,688 4 15687 2227 901 0 444 4 01 05
2013 6,396 5 19837 2915 11310 5554 49 09
Germany 2014 2,440 5 1560 6 214 8 9010 444 4 01 03
2013 31287 1,964 6 2729 1,131 ¢ 555 4 49 04
Belgium 2014 704 - - - - - -
2013 706 - - - - - -
Finland 2014 145 79 79 - - - -
2013 268 79 79 - - - -
France 2014 2834 - - - - - -
2013 52758 - - - - - -
United Kingdom 2014 6127 - - - - - -
2013 7870 - - - - - -
Italy 2014 122 - - - - - -
2013 - - - - - - -
Luxembourg 2014 47 6 - - - - - -
2013 47 6 - - - - - -
Netherlands 2014 2694 - - - - - -
2013 2252 - - - - - -
Austria 2074 297 - - - - - -
2013 635 - - - - - -
Poland 2014 264 2 - - - - - -
2013 3644 - - - - - -
Romania 2014 429 - - - - - -
2013 650 - - - - - -
Sweden 2014 144 - - - - - -
2013 614 - - - - - -
Spain 2014 2070 - - - - - -
2013 2409 - - - - - -
Czechia 2014 90 - - - - - -
2013 712 - - - - - -
Hungary 2014 1207 - - - - -~ -
2013 125 6 - - - - - -
Switzerland 2014 84 02 - - - - 02
2013 325 05 - - - - 05
UsAa 2014 2414 - - - - - -
2013 558 & 07 107 - - - -

MNote The total amount of claims 1n arrears will be stated from the second quarter 2014 onwards as far as the amount tn arrears 15 at least 5 % of the claim
So far there are no adequate data for the previous periods available
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Total amount

of payments

Notes

tatal amount of these
claims inasmuch as

N arrears the respective amount
Commercial for at teast n arrears is at least
Total thereof 90 days 5 percent of the claim

Office Retail Industrial other Buildings Building

buildings buldings buildings commercially under land

used buildings construction

€ millton € mitlion € milhon € mullion € million € million € million € miilion € million
31197 1,763 7 7597 - 586 2 - 101 659 672
44128 2,487 6 10134 - 896 & 44 106 164 -
8799 1733 3459 - 350 6 - 101 88 119
1,164 1 3170 406 4 - 4361 - 046 14 8 -
704 48 3 139 - 82 - - - -
706 485 139 - B2 - - - -
66 66 - - - - - - -
189 189 - - - - - - -
2834 2397 208 - 229 - - - -
5275 4367 56 5 - 343 - - - -
6127 497 0 763 - 394 - - 163 163
7870 5345 146 0 - 106 5 - - - -
122 - - - 122 - - - -
476 47 6 - - - - - - -
47 & 47 6 - - - - - - -~
269 4 2191 15 - 388 - - 4038 3%0
2252 1733 104 - 415 - - - -
297 247 - - 50 - - - -
535 58S - - 50 - - - =
264 2 162 3 1019 - - - - - -
3584 4 1715 167 ¢ - 259 - - - -
429 - 42 9 - - - - - -
650 221 429 - - - - - -
144 - - - 144 - - - -
614 450 - - 154 - - - -
2070 902 869 - 299 - - - -
2409 951 109 4 - 320 44 - - -
90 920 - - - - - - -
712 91 12 - 609 - - 12 -
1207 682 525 - - - - - -
1256 720 536 - - - - - -
52 - - - 82 - - - -
320 - - - 320 - - D4 -
241 4 1777 71 - 566 - - - -
547 9 442 8 63 - 988 - - - -
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Publication according to section 28 para 3 Pfandbrief Act

Volume of claims used to cover Public Pfandbriefe according to the individual states in which the borrower 1s located

Cover assets

Total thereof
State Regonal Local Other
authorities authorities debtars
State Q4 € mallion € million € mullion € million € million
Total - all states 2014 8226 01 1135 5774 1316
2013 1047 6 852 949 4179 249 6
Germany 2014 82246 01 135 5774 1316
2013 962 6 02 249 617 9 249 6
Italy 2014 - - - - -
2013 g5 0 850 - - -

Publication according to section 28 para 3 Pfandbrief Act

Total amount of payments 1n arrears for at least 90 days as well as the total amount of these claims inasmuch as the
respective amount In arrears I1s at least 5 percent of the claim

Armount of clasms in arrears for at least 90 days

Total amount of these ¢laims inasmuch as the
respectiveamaount in arrears 1s at least 5 % of the claim

Total thereof Total thereof
State Regional Local Other State Regronal Local Other
authorities  authorities debtors authonties  authonties debtors
State Q4 €mllion € milhon € miltion € milhon € milion € million € millien € million € millton € million
Total - all states 2014 - - - - - - - - - -
2013 - - - - - - - - - -
Germany 2014 - - - - - - - - - -
2013 - - - - - - - - - -
Itaty 2014 - - - - - - - - - -
2013 - - - - - - - - - -

Nate The total amount of claims in arrears will be stated from the second quarter 2014 onwards as far as the amount in arrears Is at least 5 % of the claim
So far there are no adequate data for the previous periods available
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Publication according to section 28 para 1 nos 4, 5 and 6 Pfandbrief Act

Further cover assets for Mortgage Pfandbriefe according to section 19 para 1 nos 1,2 and 3

Cover assets

Notes

Total thereof

equalizaton

claims according to section 19

ctaims para Tno 2
according :g overall thereof claims according
5“‘1'“' 3 Covered Bonds to section 19
para 1no according to para 1no 3

Article 129

Regulation (EL)

Nr 575/2013
State Q4 € million € million € midlion € millien € milhion
Total - all states 2014 4355 - 900 - 3455
2013 - - - - -
Germany 2014 4355 - Q00 - 3455
2013 - - - - -

Note Further cover assets are grouped in finer detail from second quarter 2014 onwards

So far there are no adequate data for the previous periods available

Publication according to section 28 para 1 nos 4 and 5 Pfandbnief Act

Further cover assets for Public Pfandbriefe according to section 20 para 2 nos 1and 2

Cover assets

Total thereof
equalization claims according to section 20
claims para 2no 2
according to overall of which
section 20 Covered Bonds
para 2no 1 according to
Article 129
Regulation (EU)
Nr 575/2013
State Q4 € mill:on € milhon € million € milhon
Total - all states 2014 60 - 40 -
2013 - - - -
Germany 2014 60 - 60 -
2013 - - - -

Note Further cover assets are grouped (n finer detad from second quarter 2014 onwards

So far there are no adequate data for the previous periods available
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Pubhcation according to section 28 para 1 nos 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 Pfandbrief Act

Key figures about outstanding Pfandbriefe and Cover Pool

Mortgage Pfandbriefe Q4 2014 Q4 2013

Qutstanding Pfandbriefe € mithon 4,240 0 5,267 0

thereot percentage share of fixed-rate Pfandbriefe section 28 para 1o 9 %% 89 27 -

Cover Pool € milhon 51239 469450

thereof total amount of the claims € milion - -

which exceed the limits aid down in

§ 13 para 1 section 28 para 1no 7

thereof total amount of the claims € million - -

which exceed the percentage threshold laid down in

§19para 1 no Isection 28 para 1no 8

thereof total amount of the claims € milhon - -

which exceed the percentage threshold laid down in

§ 19 para 1 no 3 sectton 28 para 1no 8

thereof percentage share of fixed-rate cover assets % 5617 -

section 28 para 1no 9

Net present value pursuant to § & of the Pfandbrref Net Present Value CAD - -

Regulation for each foreign currency in Euro CHF 312 -

section 28 para 1 no 10 {Net Total) CZK - -
DKK - -
GBP 5113 -
HKD - -
JPY - -
NOK - -
SEK 147 6 -
UsD 3131 -

volume-weighted average of the matuerity years 69 -

that has passed since the loan was granted {seasoning}

seclion 28 para 1no 11

average loan-to-value ratio, weighted using the mortgage lending value %a 41 49 -

section 28 para 2no 3

average loan-to-value ratio, weighted using the market value % - -

Public Pfandbriefe Q4 2014 Q4 2013

Qutstanding Plandbriefe € million 666 3 956 1

thereof percentage share of fixed-rate Plandbriefe section 28 para 1 no 9 % 100 00 -

Cover Pool € rillion 8226 1047 6

thereof total amount of the claims € millien - -~

which exceed the percentage threshold laid down in

§ 20 para 2 secuion 2B para tno B

thereof percentage share of fixed-rate cover assets % 38 45 -

sectton 28 para 1no 9

Net present value pursuant to § 6 of the Plandbrief Net Present Value CAD - -

Regulation for each foreign currency in Euro CHF 769 -

section 28 para 1 no 10 (Net Total} CZK - -
DKK - -
GBP - -
HKD - -
1PY - -
NOK - -
SEK - -
uUsD - -

Note The key figures on Pfandbriefe outstanding and caver pools are captured starting in the second quarter 2074

So far there are no adequate data for the previous periods avallable
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Section 28(2) no 4a of the PfandBG

Twenty-one (previous year 27) residential properties and one {previous year 1} commercial property
in recewvership and 29 {previous year 48) residential foreclosures were pending as at the reporting
date Fifty-eight {(previous year 66) residential foreclosures and one (previous year 1) commercial
foreclosure were implemented tn the year under review

Section 28(2) no 4b of the PfandBG
As in the previous year, no properties were taken over to prevent losses on mortgages during the fi-
nancial year

Section 28(2) no 4c¢ of the PfandBG
The total amount of the interest arrears payable by mortgagors, insofar as these have not already been
written off in previous years, 1s broken dewn as follows

2014 2013

€ milhion € million

Residential 41 a7
Commercial 618 117
Total 459 144

4 8 Dervative transactions

Derivative transactions have been entered into to cover interest rate and currency fluctuations and are
allocated to the investment portfohio and the liquidity reserve

The following table provides an overview of the derivative transactions existing as at the reporting
date

Notional amounts Positive fair values Negative far values
€ mill:on 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Interest rate risk
Interest rate swaps 11,5431 17,5051 1,4791 1,256 9 377 4 685 3
Caps floors 347 2 705 2 04 15 04 14
Interest rate options
- Calls 00 00 00 00 00 00
- Puts 809 5 8785 00 00 524 3 2747
Total 12,699 8 19,088 8 1,479 5 1,258 4 902 3 9614
Currency risk
Currency forwards 771 6 640 4 49 33 156 73
Currency swaps/cross-currency swaps 986 5 19506 00 121 280 145
Total 1,758 1 25910 49 154 43 6 218

Notes
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49 Auditors’ fees

2014 2013

€ millon € million

Total auditor expenses 07 07
of which for audit services 05 05
of which for other assurance services 02 02
af which for tax advisory services 00 00
of which for other services 00 00

4 10 Parent company disclosures

Name Domicite

Register no

Location of register

Erste Abwicklungsanstalt AoR Dussetdort

HRA 2036%

Dusseldorf

411 Headcount

The average number of employees in the year under review was 274 (previous year 294}, of whom 118
were female (previous year 126) and 156 were male (previous year 168) As in the previcus year,

there were no vogational or similar trainees
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412 Remuneration of governing body members

2014 2013
€ thousand € mullion € millien
Aggregate remuneration of the Managing Board 7328 12
Claus-Jurgen Cohausz 490
Christiane Kunisch-Wolff ELL
Rainer Sprelmann 468
- of which fixed remuneration* 1043 10
Claus Jurgen Cohausz 375
Chrisuane Kunisch-Wolff 314
Rawner Spielmann 353
~ of which variable remuneratign? 0165 02
Claus-Jurgen Cohausz 55
Christane Kunisch-Wolff 55
Rainer Spielmann S5
- of which variable remuneration? 0120 oo
Claus Jurgen Cohausz 60
Ramner Sprelmann 40
Aggregate remuneration of former M ging Board « bers
and their surviving dependents 029 03
Pension commitments for active Managing Board members 0342 03
Claus-lurgen Cohausz 204
Chnistiane Kunisch-Wolff 45
Rainer Spielmann 93
Pension provisions for former Managing Board members 81 78
and their surviving dependents {RZ 4 66%) (RZ 4 91 %)

! Other benefits comprise non-cash benefits/allowances for company cars, contributions to health care/long-term care insurance
and payment of tax an non-cash benefits

2 In accardance with a resolution by the Supervisory Board, the perfarmance-related {vanable) component was paid out and
in¢luded in the remuneration for 2014

The aggregate remuneration paid to the Supervisory Board for its work amounted to €0 1 million
(previous year €01 mullion)

413 Loans to govelning body members

The members of the Managing Board have been granted loans amounting to €071 million (previcus
year €0 2 milhen) The terms of the loans end in financial year 2022 at the latest The nominal rates
of interest range from 3 96% to 4 8% There are no loans to members of the Supervisory Board

(previous year €0 0 milhon)

Neo contingent habilities were entered into in favour of governing body members in either 2014 or 2013
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4 14 Governing bodies
Managing Board

Claus-Jurgen Cohausz
Chairman of the Managing Board

Supervisory Board

Matthias Wargers, Chairman
Spokesman of the Managing Board
Erste Abwicklungsanstalt

Markus Bolder, Deputy Chairman
Managing Beard member
Erste Abwicklungsanstalt

Dr UIf Bachmann

Head of Strategic Project
and Investee Management
Erste Abwicklungsanstalt

Christiane Kumsch-Wolff
Member of the Managing Board

Rainer Spielmann
Member of the Managing Board

Michael Breuer
President
Savings Banks and Gire Association of the Rhineland

Dr Roif Gerlach
President
Savings Banks and Giro Association of Westphalia-Lippe

Gerhard Heillgenberg
Senior Principal
Finance Ministry of the State of North Rhine-Westphaka

415 Appointments to statutery supervisory bodies

None

Mainz, 29 January 2015

Cla gen Cohalis * chnbnan®¥n

(ldo..

Raner Spielmann
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement for the period 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

2014 2013
€ €
Net income for the financial year before profit transfer 64,083,251 21 50,253,344 54
+/- downs of and valuation allowances on recervables/reversals of such write-downs 19,434 357 N -46 720,439 12
and valuation allowances

+/~ Increase/decrease in provisions 13,674,649 46 6,899,020 06
+/= Other non-cash expensefincome ~18 259,002 25 83,649,843 88
=i+ Gain/loss on disposal of fixed assets ~-532,556 70 -522,076 65
-/+ Other adjustments (net) -7 89512854 -10,735,394 53
-+ Increase/decrease i recewables from banks -18,674 723 39 343 526 800 06
~-I+ Increase/decrease in receivables from customers 2751 772,419 45 3,613,388,467 60
-+ Increase/decrease in securities not classified as long term financial assets 468,525,000 00 245 979 527 79
-+ Increase/decrease in other assets relating to operating activities 16,406,266 10 111 285 072 02
+/= Increase/decrease in habilities to banks 65 681 797 43 -901,420,197 32
+/- Increase/decrease in habilities to customers —-1231,078,903 67 =-1.416,198 019 94
+= Increase/decrease In securitised liabihties -1,742,500,000 Q0 -1,807,500,000 Q0
+/= Increase/decrease in other habilities relating to operating activities 14,523,237 46 -17,970,453 27
+/- Interest expense/interest income -107,592,932 61 ~134,788 391 18
+i- Expenses for/income from extraordinary items 7,000 000 Q0 8,152,672 92
+/- Income tax expense/income 153 144 89 118,252 00
+ Interest and dividend payments receved 560,019 269 70 618 442 752 59
- Interest paid -471,493 54213 -527 3337111 29
-/+ Income taxes paid 83 557 16 22,789 06
/4 Payments made and receved relating to profit and loss transfer agreements with subsicharies 14 798,625 65 ~7.354,822 B0
= Cash flows from operating activities 398,128,687 53 211,175,036 42
+ Proceeds from disposal of long term financial assets 000 9,984,904 17
- Payments to acquire leng-term financial assets -408,683,561 0C 000
+ Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets 35,425 11 000
- Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets —-54 45513 —294,569 85
+ Proceeds from disposal of intangible fixed assets igvY) 000
- Payments to acquire intangible fixed assets ~48,909 00 -143 162 45
+ Proceeds from disposal of shares in affilated companies and other long term equity Investments 990,941 15 10,368,634 21
- Payments to acquire shares In affibated compantes and other long term equity mvestments -353 60 ~20,289,213 36
= Cash flows from investing activities -407,760,912 47 -373,407 28
+ Proceeds from capital contrnibutions by the shareholder 24 000,000 00 Q00
- Payments far profit and loss transter ~50 253 344 54 -508,557 50
+= Changes in cash funds relating to other capital {net) 000 -188,911,485 15
= Cash flows from financing activities -26,253,344 54 —189 420 042 45
Net change in cash funds -35 885,569 48 21,381,586 49

+/= Change n cash funds attributable to the carve-out -6,048,96% 71
+ Cash funds at beginning of perrod 74,861,393 10 53 479,806 61
= Cash funds at end of period 32,926,853 91 74,861,393 10
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The cash flow statement reports the change in cash funds in the pernod under review classified
separately by cash flows for operating, investing and financing activities

The statement s prepared 1n accordance with German Accounting Standard No 21 (GAS 21)

The reported cash funds correspond to the “Cash funds” balance sheet item, which comprises cash-
in-hand and centra! bank balances

Cash flows from operating activities primanly comprise payments (inflows and outflows} relating to
receivables and habihties, securities 1n the hquidity reserve and other assets and habihties Interest
received and paid, dividends received and other profits recerved, as well as income taxes paid are also
reported in cash flows from operating activities When presenting cash flows from operating activities,
net income for the financial year before profit transfer 1s used as the measure of earnings This 1
calculated from the income statement by adding back profit transferred on the basis of profit pooling,
profit transfer, or partial profit transfer agreements to net income

Cash flows from investing activities comprise proceeds and cash payments related to addittons and
disposals of items of fixed assets, classified into lang-term financial assets, tangible fixed assets and
intangible fixed assets In the reporting period, cash flows from investing activities were impacted
mainly by securities purchases

Cash flows from financing activities comprise payments to/by the owner on the basis of the existing
profit and loss transfer agreement, proceeds from/payments for the 1ssue/reduction of capital as well
as proceeds and payments attnibutable to subordinated capttal In the year under review, EAA made
an additional payment of €24 0 million, which was transferred to the capital reserves Assets decreased
as a result of the carve-out transaction, thereby reducing equity by €448 7 milhon

The extraordinary expenses of €7 Q0 milion incurred in the financial year resulted from addittons to
restructuring provisions

The deaision-usefulness of the cash flow statement for banks must be regarded as low because the
cash flow statement does not replace hquidhity or financial planning and 1s not used as a management
instrument Please refer to the disclosures in the Risk Report ¢ontained in the Management Report
for information on liquidity risk management at Westimmo
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Accumulated retained earnings attrtbutable to Westimmo shareholders

Subscribed Capital Revente reserves Net tncome Equity
capital reserves for the
financial year
Reserves provided Other revenue
for by the articles raserves

€ million of association
Balance at 1 Jan 2013 4000 443 4 17z 215 oo 876 6
Capital increases (1] oo 00 0o 00 oe
Redemption of shares 00 oo 00 00 oo 00
Additions to capital reserves 00 (L] 00 oo o0 o0
Withdrawals from capital reserves a0 00 0o o0 00 oo
Additions to revenue raserves 00 00 0o 00 Q0 00
Withdrawals from revenue reserves Q0 00 00 00 00 0o
Net income for financial year 2013 00 00 00 00 00 00
Balance at 31 Dec 213 400 0 443 4 n?z 215 00 876 6
Balance at 1 Jan 2014 400 0 443 4 M7 215 00 Bl6 &
Capital increases o0 00 0o ¢ 0o ¢
Redemption of shares 00 a0 0oe o0 00 00
Additions to capital reserves oo 240 o0 oo 00 24 0
Withdrawals from capital reserves 0o =427 2 00 o0 00 -427 2
Additions to revenue reserves 00 o0 00 a0 o0 V3]
Withdrawals from revenue reserves 0o 00 00 -215 00 -215
Net income for financial year 2014 00 00 00 00 oo 00
Balance at 31 Dec 2014 400 0 402 17 00 00 4519

“There 1s a profit and loss transfer agreement under which profits of €50 3 mullion were transferred 1n 2013 and praofits of €64 1 milion were transferred 1n 2014

The subscribed capital of Westimmo as at 31 December 2014 amounted to €400 0 milhon (previous year €400 0 mihon}
and 1s diwided into four million no-par value registered shares The notional interest 1n the share capital 1s €100 00 per
no-par value share All shares carry the same voting rights EAA holds 100% of the shares A total of €448 7 million was
withdrawn from the capital reserves and the other revenue reserves to cover the decrease (n assets resulting from the
carve-cut of a sub-portfolio and its transfer to EAA Westlmmo received an additional payment of €24 0 million from EAA
to strengthen its equity, this was transferred to the capital reserves in accordance with section 272(2) No 4 of the Handels-
gesetzbuch (HGB ~ German Commercial Code}
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Audit opinion
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We have audited the annual financiat statements — comprising the balance sheet, Income statement,
notes to the financial statements, cash flow staternent and statement of changes :n equity — together
with the bookkeeping system, and the management report of Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG,
Mainz, for the fiscal year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014 The maintenance of the books
and records and the preparation of the annual financial statements and management report in accordance
with German commercial law are the responsibility of the Bank’s management Qur responsibility 1s
to express an opinion on the annual financsal statements, together with the bookkeeping system, and
the management report based on our audit

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements in accordance with Sec 317 HGB (“Handels-
gesetzbuch” German Commercial Code) and German generally accepted standards for the audit of
financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprufer (Institute of Public Auditors in
Germany) {IDW) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that nusstatements
matenally affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in
the annual financial statements in accordance with {German) principles of proper accounting and In
the management report are detected with reasonable assurance Knowledge of the business activities
and the economic and legal environment of the Bank and expectations as to possible misstatements
are taken into account in the deterrmimation of audit procedures The effectiveness of the accounting-
related internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and records,
the annual financial statements and the management report are examined primarily on a test basis
within the framework of the audit The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and
sigmificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual
financial statements and management report We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for cur cpinion

Our audit has not led to any reservations

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the annual financial statements comply with the
legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations of the Bank in accordance with (German) principles of proper accounting The management
reportis consistent with the annual financial statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the
Bank's position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following special aspect As presented in the
section of the management report entitled "Expected Development of Westimmo,” the Bank 1s only
permitted to engage 1n business as of 1 July 2012 under the condition that 1t does not violate the
deaision reached by the European Commission on 20 December 2017 regarding the state aid provided
by the German government for the restructuring of WestLB The shareholder’s approved winding-up
plan calis for a further reduction of the Bank’s assets while mimimizing the adverse effect on equity
and net income as part of an actively pursued proiongation management strategy and in adherence to
the prowisions of the PfandBG {“Pfandbriefgesetz” German Pfandbrief Act) On 22 February 2015,
the shareholder reached an agreement with the Aareal Bank Group on the sale of all of its shares in
the Bank The sale is planned for the second quarter of 2015 and 1s subject to several conditions
A sale of the Bank would render the above restrictions and conditions obsclete The integration of
Westdeutsche lmmobilienBank AG, Mainz, into the buyer’s business model could lead to a new focus
for the Bank's operations which might have an extraordinary impact on its net assets, financial position
and results of operations
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We have 1ssued this opimion on the basis of our audit performed in accordance with professional
standards and completed on 12 February 2015 and our supplementary audit relating to the section of
the management report entitied “Subsequent Events” in which the Bank reports on the agreement
reached on the sale of Westimmo to the Aareal Bank Group dated 22 February 2015 and the related
update of the management report section entitled "Expected Development of Westimmo” In addition,
our supplementary audit also related to an adjustment of the disclosures pursuant to Sec 28 (1) No 4,
No 5 and No 6 PfandBG 1n section 4 7 of the notes to the financial statements Qur supplementary
audit has not led to any reservations

Dusseldorf, 12 February 2015/
restricted to the aforementioned amendment 26 February 2015

Ernst & Young GmbH
Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft

Werthmann Mai
Wirtschaftsprufer Wirtschaftsprufer
(German Public Auditor} {German Publhc Auditor)

Audit opinmion
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Responsibility Statement
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To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the single-
entity financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and
profit or loss of Westdeutsche ImmaobilienBank AG, and the management report of the Bank includes
a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Bank, together
with a descrniption of the material opportunities and rnisks associated with the expected development
of the Bank in the coming fiscal year

Mainz, 24 February 2015

urgen Cohausz Christiane Ku ff Rainer Spielmann
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Report of the Supervisory Board

The financial markets in Europe and North America were dominated by low interest rates and low
volatility in 2014 In Europe, the economy was impacted by central bank policy and the consequences
of geopolitical crises The inflation rate in the eurozone fell sharply, primanly due to the considerable
drop in oil prices as the year progressed This situation was reinforced by the low interest rate environ-
ment The economic situation improved n the USA, with the positive effects visible on the labour
market and in consumer spending By contrast, economic growth slackened slightly in China The low
Interest rates are set to continue accompanying and shaping the global economy In the eurozone, we
expect economic growth in all of the countries to be dampened by high unemployment and austenty,
although there will again be modest expansion The low ol prices should boost economic growth At
a global level, Asia and North America will be the growth drivers next year

As before, the following matters are of central importance to Westlmmo

Since 1 July 2012, Westimmo has only been permitted to do business that complies with the European
Commission’s resolution dated 20 December 2011 on the restructuring of WestLB AG This means
that Westlmmo 1s mainly focused on actively managing its loan portfolio and cover pools

The Bank's results were roughly on a level with the previous year despite the ongoing dechne in 1ts
interest-bearing portfolios The hard work of the Managing Board and the employees as well as the
consistently constructive working relationship with the Staff Council were key factors in this develop-
ment The Supervisory Board would like to thank them all for their dedication

Cooperation between the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board

In the past year, the Supervisory Board discharged its duties under the law and the bylaws, and over-
saw and advised the Managing Board in 1ts management of the Bank Last year, the Managing Board
and the Supervisory Board engaged in a continuous and cemprehensive exchange of information The
Supervisory Board examined the business performance and the risk situation tn detail last year The
Managing Board informed the Supervisory Board on both a regutar and an ad hoc basis in writing and
verbally of relevant issues cancerning business development, the risk posttion and risk management,
comphance, business strategy and planning, as well as of significant events and transactions Ensuring
the flow of information 1s perceived as a responsibiity affecting both boards and 1s defined in greater
detail In these bodies’ bylaws Above and beyond this, the Chairman of the Managing Board and the
Chawrman of the Supervisory Board n particular are in constant contact and discuss current 1ssues
and developments In addition, the chairman of the supervisory body has a right to obtain information —
with the invelvement of the management — from the head of the Internal Audit department and the risk
controller in accordance with MaRisk, and from the Compliance Officer in accordance with MaComp
Alternatively, if the company has established an audit committee, a mechamism can be established
for ensuring that the chairman of the audit committee can obtain the information These requirements
were met in 2014
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Supervisoly Board Meelings
The Supervisory Board held four ordinary meetings in the financial year under review

At each of the meetings, the Managing Board reported to the Superviscry Board on the Bank’s business
performance and on its current position

At the meeting on 14 March 2014, the Managing Board reported to the Supervisory Board on the
audit, discussion and adoption of the annual financial statements and management report for 2013, the
approval of Managing Board and Supervisory Board members’ actions, the risk analys:s self-assessment
as a non-major institution in accordance with the Institutsvergutungsverordnung {InstitutsVergV -
Remuneration Regulation for Institutions), the TRIAS sale process and the carve-out portfolio

At the meeting on 28 April 2014, the Supervisory Board took note of the reporting on the TRIAS sale
process and the carve-out portfolio, as well as the anti-money laundering and compliance analysis
The Supervisory Board proposed to the Annual General Meeting that Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschafts-
prufungsgesellschaft, Eschborn, be appointed as auditers of the annual financial statements for financial
year 2014

The meeting on 20 August 2014 focused on the half-yearly financial report, the report on audit of the
investment services business for 2013/2014, the remuneration report and reporting on the carve-out/
servicing, as well as the Quarturo sale process

At i1ts meeting on 21 November 2014, the Supervisory Board took note of the downsizing plan for
2015-2021, the reporting on the Quarturc sale process, the Compliance function risk analysis 1n
accordance with MaRisk (Minimum Requirements for Risk Management) and the governing bodies’
meeting dates for 2015, and approved the updated business strategy

Paiticipation at Mectings

Mr Michael Breuer and Dr Rolf Gerlach were each only able to attend one of the four Supervisory
Board meetings

Audtt and Risk Commuittee

The Supervisory Board has established an expert committee, the Audit and Risk Comnittee The chair
of this expert commuttee reported regularly to the Supervisory Board on the committee’s work

The Audit and Risk Committee held five meetings in the financial year, at each of which 1t discussed
in detait the overall bank nisk, risk management and the risk situation 1n relation to the individual rnisk
types (credit, market, hquidity and operational risk)

The Audit and Risk Committee took note of the annual financial statements prepared as at 31 December
2013, including the management report, as well as the audit reports of the auditors, the unquahified
audit opinion, and explanatory remarks relating to special circumstances identified by the auditors
The audit reports were discussed with the auditors, and the annual financial statements and the
management report prepared were discussed with the Managing Board Asa result, the Audit and Risk
Committee obtained its own view of the situation and did not raise any objections It recommended that
the Superwisory Board adopt the annual financial statements
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1n addition, the Audit and Risk Committee addressed the implementation of Basel 111, CRD IV, and the
amendment to the MaRisk, the audit of the investment services business for 2013/2014, the development
of an internal credit portfolio model, business performance as at 30 June 2014, the implementation of
the carve-out pertfolio and its impact on the remaiming portfolio, the assessment of the carve-out
partfoho transfer process, the Quarturc sale process, current progress in external and internal audits,
the application of BAN, LAU and SOV ratings procedures in accordance with the Credit Risk Stand-
ardised Approach {(CRSA) and the validation results for 2013, as well as the validation results for 2014
under the Internal Ratings-based Approach {IRBA} 1t took note of the credit nisk capital reporting and
approved the iguidity, credit and market risk strategy

At the same time, the Audit and Risk Commuttee 15 the highest decisisn-making authonity for loan
approvals and decided on the loan exposures submitted to it by the Managing Board

Annual Financial Statements 2014

In ine with its appointment by the Annual General Meeting and engagement by the Supervisory Board,
Ernst & Young GmbH, Eschborn, audited the annual financial statements as at 31 December 2014,
including the management report Following thewr audit, the auditors 1ssued an unqualified audit
opinion on the financial statements, including the management report, with explanatory remarks relating
to special circumstances 1dentified by the auditors The annual financial statements were prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles laid down in the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB - German
Commeraial Code)

Atits meeting on 19 February 2015, the Audit and Risk Committee took note of the prepared financial
statements and the management report together with the audit report by the external auditors
Following discussion of the audit reports with the auditors and the subsequent discussion with the
Managing Board, the Audit and Risk Committee raised no objections and recommended that the Super-
visory Board adopt the annual financial statements

Atits meeting on 5 March 2015, the Supervisory Board took note of the prepared financial statements
and management report, the unqualified audit opinion and the audit reports These documents were
made available to Supervisory Board members in good time The Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee provided detailed nformation on the results of its examination during the meeting
The auditor and the supplementary audit were present at the Supervisory Board meeting Following
its examination and discussion, the Supervisory Board adopted the annual financial statements as at
31 December 2014

Mainz, 5 March 2015

Chafriafof the Supervisory Board
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Corporate Governance Report of Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG
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Westimmo 1s committed to ensuring trust-based and sustainable corporate management for customers
and business partners, as well as other stakeholders This s why the Company has voluntarily adopted
the recommendations and suggestions of the German Corporate Governance Code (the Code) The
current version of the Code dated 24 June 2014 serves as the benchmark for Westimmo's actions

Annual Geneial Meeting

The Supervisory and Managing Boards provide information on the adopted financial statements and
the management report, as well as on the implementation of the Code at the Annual General Meeting
In addition, the Supervisory Board reports on its activities in the past fiscal year

The Annual General Meeting resofves in particular on the election of Supervisory Board members and
the auditors, and approves the actions of the members of the governing bodies Itis not required to
decide on the appropriation of net profit due to the profit and loss transfer agreement with Erste
Abwicklungsanstalt {EAA)

Westimmo has issued 4,000,000 no-par value registered shares each conveying one voung right, all
of which are held by EAA Representatives from EAA’s Managing Board and one of its second-level
managers are represented on Westimmo's Supervisory Board This ensures open and transparent
communication with the shareholder The Managing Board and the Supervisory Board believe that
certain recommendations of the Code do not offer any substantial added value due to the concrete
ownership structure, for example, the Bank dispenses with the publication of convening documents
for third parties and the broadcasting of the Annual General Meeting on the Internet, as well as the
publication of a financial calendar The notice convening the Annual General Meeting 1s addressed
exclusively to the scole shareholder

Cooperation between the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board

The Managing Board and the Supervisory Board work together closely and communicate openly tn
the interests of the Company, 1ts employees and its shareholder The Managing Board coordinates the
strategic approach with the Supervisory Board and regularly reports to it on the status of its imple-
mentation Fundamental decisions and measures affecting the net assets, financial position and results
of operations are made with the involvement of the Supervisory Board The basis for cooperation 1s
setoutinthe Articles of Association and the governing bodies’ bylaws The Chairman of the Managing
Board and the Chairman of the Supervisory Board regularly exchange information

Managing Board

The Managing Board consists of two members and a Chairman The areas of responsibility are regulated
separately on the basis of the authorisation in the Managing Board’s bylaws

The Managing Board 1s directly responsible for corporate management It develops the Company’s
strategic approach with a view to 1ts best interests and to sustainably increasing its enterprise value
and agrees this approach with the Supervisory Board It also ensures compliance with legal provisions
and the Company’s internal policies within the Group Appropriate risk management and risk control
play a particularly important role in the Company’s internal policies, please refer to the Risk Report
for further details on this
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Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board consists of six members in accordance with the Articles of Assoctation No
co-determination rights need to be taken into account by the Annual General Meeting for the election
of Supervisory Board members The Superwisory Board has established one expert committee, namely
the Audit and Risk Commuttee The commuittee chair reports regularly to the Supervisory Board on the
waork of the committee

Duectors’ dealings (conflicts of mterest)

Managing Board or Supervisory Board members do not directly or indirectly hold shares of Westimmo
or related financial instruments This means that there are no transactions subject to mandatory
reporting in accordance with either the recommendations of the Code or with section 15a of the WpHG

Transparency and accounting

Westimmo sold its last significant equity investment, WIB Real Estate Finance Japan K X, Japan, in
June 2013 As a result, Westlmmo 1s no longer required to prepare consolidated financial statements
Westlmmo publishes its annual financial statements and the management report in an annual report
It also publishes condensed half-yearly financial statements and a condensed intersim management
report in accordance with the HGB As Westlmmo 1s not a listed company, it does not publish half-yearly
financial statements within the accelerated timeframe and does not prepare quarterly reports The
Bank reports each month to its sharehoider using a predefined reporting package

Before recommending the auditors for election, the Supervisory Board obtains a statement of inde-
pendence from the auditors and i1ssues the engagement letter once the Annual General Meeting has
reached a decision The Supervisory Board agrees with the auditors that they will immediately report
any findings and issues that emerge during the audit and that are matenal for the tasks of the Super-
visory Board

Remuneration Report

The Supervisory Board members delegated by Westimmo's shareholder ensure that the latter s
represented on the bodies that deal with remuneration 1ssues This guarantees complete transparency
and the full flow of information to the shareholder Westimmo considers the aggregate disclosure
of remuneration to be sufficient for third parties to judge the appropriateness of the remuneration
Certain disclosures on remuneration must also be made in the notes to financial statements These
are presented in Notes 4 12 (Remuneration of governing body members) and 4 13 (Loans to governing
body members) to the annual financial statements

83




Enghish translation

&4

Remuneration of the Managing Board

In accordance with the statutory requirements iaid down In the Gesetz zur Angemessenheit der Vor-
standsvergutung (VorstAG - German Act on the Appropriateness of Executive Board Remuneration),
the Supervisory Board determines the Managing Board's salaries and other remuneration components,
including pension commitments Corresponding contracts of service have been signed with the members
of the Managing Board These include both fixed remuneration and variable remuneration components
based on sustainable corporate development in the form of year-end remuneration The Chairman of the
Supervisory Board provides information to the Annual General Meeting on the fundamental principles
governing the remuneration system and any changes 1o 1t

The fixed, non-performance-related basic remuneration component 1s paid as a monthly salary This s
reviewed at the latest when contracts are extended The Supervisory Board addresses 1ssues relating
to the Managing Board at any meeting if needed, or at least once a year The fixed benefits include
customary non-cash remuneration components

Pension provisions far active Managing Board members amounted to €0 3 mitlion, on a level with the
previcus year Pension provisions for former Managing Board members increased by €0 3 million
compared with fiscal year 2013 to €8 1 million

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Following the end of the fiscal year, the Superwvisory Board members receive appropriate non-per-
formance-related remuneration, which s resolved by the Annual General Meeting Dr Bachmann,
Mr Bolder and My Wargers submitted a waiver with regard to remuneration for their activities on
Westlmmo's governing bodies

Declaration of Conformuty 20774

The Managing Board and Supervisory Board of Westimmo declare in accordance with section 161 of
the AktG that the recommendations of the Government Comnuission on the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code (the Code) in the version dated 24 June 2014 were and are complied with, with the following
exceptions

® Because of 1ts shareholder structure compnising a sole shareholder, the Bank does not comply with
the recommendations in section 2 3 1 of the Code with regard to Annual General Meeting formalities
insofar as it does not publish any documents on the Company’s website in additicn, the Bank does
not enable shareholders to follow the Annual General Meetings using moedern communication media
{section 2 3 3), nor does it pubhsh a financial calendar (section 6 4)

m To ensure maximum flexibihty as recommended in section 4 2 1 of the Code, the Bank does not allocate
fixed responsibihties among Managing Board members in the bylaws The areas of responsibility
are regulated in a schedule of responsibilities

® The Bank observes diversity criteria when filing management positions {section 4 1 5) and i1n the
composition of the Managing Board (section 51 2} Women are given appropriate consideration in
the appointment process However, the Bank does not set specific targets for this (section 5 4 1)
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m The Bank partly departs from the recommendations 1n section 5 4 6 of the Code, as detailed in the
Remuneration Report In particular, the Bank does not comply with the recommendation to publish
the total remuneration of each of the members of the Supervisory Board This is because the sole
shareholder 1s represented on the bodies that deal with 1ssues relating to remuneration and this
fulfils the purpose behind the recommendation

m In accordance with section 5 3 3 of the Code, the Supervisory Board 1s expected to form a nomination
committee, which proposes suitable candidates to the Supervisory Board to recommend to the
Annual General Meeting for election Because of its shareholder structure, ne such committee has
been formed and the compaosition of the Supervisory Board 1s discussed by the full Supervisory
Board

® The Bank does not observe the age restrictions for members of the Managing Board and other bodies
recommended insections 51 2and 5 4 1, as it sees no suitable quahty advantages in having a maximum

m The Bank publishes annual financial statements and a half-yearly financial report The Bank does
not comply with the recommendations for interim management statements in order to inform third
parties in accordance with section 71 1 of the Code or with the recommendation on the publication
of half-yearly financial statements within an accelerated timeframe in accordance with section 71 2
of the Code because it does not prepare consolidated financial statements

& Section 71 3 {stock option plans and similar incentive systems} 1s not relevant to the Bank because
no corresponding programmes have been instituted in the past or currently exist

The Declarations of Conformity and the Corporate Governance Reports are available on the Bank's
website at www westimmo com In the Investor Relations portal, Financial Information pages, under
“"Corporate Governance” (1n German only)

Mainz, 5 March 2015

For the Supgrvisory Board For the Managing Board

Chairman of the Managing Board
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Names - Contact - Locations

Members of the

Managing Board

Claus-Jurgen Cohausz

Chairman

Rainer Spielmann

Christiane Kunisch-Wallf

Information correct as of March 2015
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Managing Directors and
Branch Managers

Andiew § Cooper
Managing Director
Nordamerika

Werner Doetsch
Managing Birector
Specialised Finance/
Capital Markets

tHeribert Eisenburger
Managing Director
Central Customer Support
Germany

Lee Mays
Branch Manager
Madrid

Ohiver Pleiner
Managing Director
Europe

Danmiela Spies
Branch Manager
Paris

Datota Filant
8ranch Manager
Warsaw

Norbert Wiling
Branch Manager
UK/London Branch

Heads of
Central Departments

Marcus Adlel
Batance and Accounting

Gerhaid Bappert
Risik Management

Elvnia Dettwerler-Schols
Human Resources

Frank Heid
Board Amimistration Staff/
Group Development

Frank Hafling
Organmisation/IT & Administration

Heinrich Hunecke
Legal

Tobias ligen
Treasury

Tanja Gumny
Property Valuation & Research

Matthias Riedel
Credit Management

Francisco Vazquez Gomes
Internal Audit

Maitin Webel
Project- & Processmanagement

Jurg Wenk
Retail Banking

Karl-Heinz Wulfert
intensive Care and Work Out Unit
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Deutschland

Mainz {Headquarters)
GroRe Bleiche 46

55116 Mainz

Germany

Tel +49 6131 9280-0
Fax + 49 6131 9280-7200
info@westimmoe com
www westimmo com

Munster

Piusallee 7

48147 Munster

Germany

Tel +49 251 4888-4

Fax + 49 251 4888-7781
muenster@westimmo com

Central Customer Support Germany
Heribert Eisenburger

Piusallee 7

48147 Munster

Germany

Tel +49 251 4888-7540

Fax + 49 251 4888-7515
muenster@westimmo com

Specialised Finance/Capital Markets
Werner Doetsch

GroBe Bleiche 46

55116 Mainz

Germany

Tel +49 6131 9280-7270

Fax + 49 6131 9280-7307
rhein-main@westimmo com

Retasl Banking

Jorg Wenk

Piusallee 7

48147 Munster

Germany

Tel + 49 251 4888-7730
Fax + 49 251 4888-97730
info@westimmo com

Information correct as of March 2015

Europe

Ohiver Plemner

GroBe Bleiche 46

55116 Mainz

Germany

Tel + 49 6131 9280-7056
Fax +49 6131 9280-7483
mainz@westimmo com

France

Daniela Spies

Level 2

21-23 Bd Haussmann
75009 Panis

France

Tel +3315603-6601
Fax + 33 1 5603-6603
paris@westimmo com

Great Britain

Norbert Wilms

City Tower, 9th floor
Suite 2 046-907

40 Basinghall Street
London EC2V 5DE
Great Britain

Tel + 44 207491-6832
Fax + 44 20 7491-6850
london@westimmo com

Poland

Dorota Filant

Warsaw Financial Center
11th floor

Emiln Plater 53

00-113 Warschau

Poland

Tel +48 22540 6205
mobile + 48 601 558586
warsaw@westimmo com

Spain

Lee Mays

C/Serrano, 37, 5a pita
28001 Madnd

Spam

Tel +349143280-30
Fax + 34 91 43280-66
madnd@westimmo com

Notth America

Andrew S. Cooper
850 Third Avenue
21st Floor

New York, NY 10022
usa

Tel + 1212 588-1539
Fax + 1212 588-0992
ny@westimmo com
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Disclaimel
Reservation regarding tor ward-looking statement

The Annual Report has been prepared on the basis of publicly available information, internally developed
data and other sources believed to be reltable No representation, warranty or untertaking, express or
impthied, 1s given No responsibility 1s accepted by either Westdeutsche ImmobilienBank AG or by any
of its emplayees for the completeness or accuracy of any of the information contained herein

The Financial Report centains forward-looking statements on our business and earnings performance,
estimates, forecasts and expectations The statements entail risks and uncertainties, as there are a
variety of factors which influence our business and to a great extent he beyond our sphere of influence
Above all, these include the economic situation, the state of the financial markets worldwide and
possible loan losses Actual results and developments may, therefore, diverge considerably from our
current assumptrons, which, for this reason, are valid only at the time of publication We undertake no
obligation to revise our forward-looking statements tn the hight of either new information or unexpected
events
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